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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

CARON COLADONATO, on behalf of herself and

all others similarly situated, Civil Action No.
Plaintiff,
V. CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AND
JURY DEMAND

J. CREW GROUP, INC.; J. CREW OPERATING
CORP.;J. CREW, INC,; J. CREW
INTERNATIONAL, INC.; CHINOS HOLDINGS,
INC.; CHINOS INTERMEDIATE HOLDINGS A,
INC.; and CHINOS INTERMEDIATE HOLDINGS
B, INC,,

Defendants.

Plaintiff Caron Coladonato, on behalf of herself and all others similarly situated, through
her undersigned attorneys, files this class action Complaint against Defendants and alleges as
follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. Plaintiff brings this nationwide class action against Defendants alleging violations

of federal and state pricing regulations, common law, and the consumer protection laws of New

York and New Jersey.

2. Specifically, it is alleged that Defendants engaged in a systematic scheme of false
and misleading advertising, marketing, and sales practices with respect to the sale of apparel and
other personal items via their online J. Crew Factory website and in their physical J. Crew Factory
retail stores. This scheme, which is set forth in more detail herein, may be summarized as follows.

3. With respect to their online J. Crew Factory website, Defendants had, and continue
to have, a policy of setting an arbitrary “valued at” price for every item offered for sale, which

purports to be the item’s “original” or “regular” price. This practice is false and misieading
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because no items are ever sold or offered for sale at this “valued at” price, but rather are always
sold at a price that is lower than the “valued at” price.

4, Further, Defendants perpetually held, and continue to hold, a series of “sales” on
their online J. Crew Factory website that purport to discount, for a limited time, every item offered
for sale by a certain percentage or amount. For example, during a recent advertised “50% OFF
EVERYTHING” sale, Defendants offered a shirt “valued at” $29.50 at a purportedly discounted
price of “$14.99.” This practice is false and misleading because the advertised sale prices do not
represent an actual “50% OFF” discount, as the items were never sold or offered for sale at their
assigned “valued at” prices.

5. Moreover, the purported sale price of $14.99 is not an actual “50% OFF” discount
from the shirt’s assigned “valued at” price of $29.50, as claimed by Defendants, but represents
only a 49% discount off the “valued at” price.

6. Finally, Defendants represented, and continue to assert, that their advertised online
sale prices are available only for a limited time. This practice is false and misleading because each
“sale” is immediately followed by another similar sale, which results in the same or a very similar
“discounted” price for each item on Defendants® website, regardless of the precise terms of each
purported “sale.”

7. For example, the above-noted shirt, which was purportedly discounted to “$14.99”
during the advertised “50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale on April 12, 2017, was also offered for sale
at the identical price of $14.99 during an advertised “UP TO 50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale on
April 10, 2017; at an “UP TO 60% OFF NEW ARRIVALS” sale on April 7, 2017; and at an

“EXTRA 50% OFF CLEARANCE” sale on March 31, 2017.
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8. Defendants engage in similar false and misleading advertising, marketing, and sales
practices in their physical J. Crew Factory retail stores.

9. Specifically, each item offered for sale by Defendants in their retail stores has a
price tag that sets forth a purported “original” or “regular” price that is identical to the arbitrary
“valued at” price advertised on Defendants’ website. Yet, like on the website, no item is ever sold
or offered for sale at its ticketed price in Defendants’ retail stores, but rather all items are always
sold and offered for sale at prices that are lower than their ticketed prices.

10.  Further, as on their website, Defendants perpetually held, and continue to hold, a
series of “sales” in their physical J. Crew Factory retail stores that purport to discount, for a limited
time, every item in their stores by a certain percentage or amount. For example, during a recent
in-store sale, Defendants advertised via several large placards “50% OFF EVERYTHING,” and
offered a shirt with a ticketed price of “$59.50” at purportedly discounted sale price of “$29.95.”
Like Defendants’ online pricing policies, this practice is similarly false and misleading because
the advertised sale prices do not represent an actual “50% OFF” discount, as the items were never
sold or offered for sale at their ticketed prices in Defendants’ retail stores.

11.  Moreover, the purported sale price of the above shirt is not even a full “50% OFF,”
as advertised, but is slightly less (approximately 49.66% off). Thus, even if the shirt were
previously sold at the ticketed price of $59.50 — which it was not — the advertised discount and
sale price would still be false and misleading.

12, Because Defendants’ sales — and their purported discounted sale prices —never end,
but rather continue on a daily basis and are available anytime a customer visits Defendants’ website

or their retail stores, the purported sale prices are not actually discounted at all, but rather are the

everyday, regular prices of the items.
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13.  Federal regulations prohibit the advertising of false, “phantom” price reductions
and discounts off inflated, fictitious “regular” prices that never actually existed. See 16 C.F.R. §

233.1.

14.  Moreover, the consumer protection laws and common law of all states, including
New York and New Jersey, prohibit deceptive advertising, marketing, and sales practices,
including advertising and selling items at purported discounts and offering price advantages that
do not exist.

15. By advertising these limited-time discounts that were never actually provided to
customers, and by selling items based on these non-existent discounts, Defendants have violated
the state consumer protection laws of New York and New Jersey, as well as the common law and
federal regulations, as set forth herein.

16.  Plaintiff brings this lawsuit against Defendants to stop this unlawful practice, to
recover for the class of customers of the J. Crew Factory website and retail stores the overcharges
that they paid, and to obtain for customers the actual discounts they were entitled to receive but
did not due to Defendants’ deceptive practices.

PARTIES

17.  Plaintiff Caron Coladonato is an individual and a resident and citizen of New
Jersey. During the class period, Plaintiff purchased goods from Defendants’ online J. Crew
Factory website and from Defendants’ physical J. Crew Factory retail stores on numerous

occasions, and suffered an ascertainable loss and monetary damages as a result of Defendants’

unlawful conduct alleged herein.
18.  Defendant J. Crew Group, Inc. is a for-profit corporation formed and existing under

the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business at 770 Broadway, New York,
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New York 10003, and thus is a citizen of Delaware and New York. Defendant J. Crew Group,
Inc. may be served with process by service upon its registered agent, Corporation Service
Company, 80 State Street, Albany, New York 12207.

19.  Defendant J. Crew Operating Corp. is a for-profit corporation formed and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business at 770 Broadway, New
York, New York 10003, and thus is a citizen of Delaware and New York. Defendant J. Crew
Operating Corp. may be served with process by service upon its registered agent, Corporation
Service Company, 80 State Street, Albany, New York 12207.

20.  Defendant J. Crew, Inc. is a for-profit corporation formed and existing under the
laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business at 770 Broadway, New York,
New York 10003, and thus is a citizen of Delaware and New York. Defendant J. Crew, Inc. may
be served with process by service upon its registered agent, Corporation Service Company, 830
Bear Tavern Road, Ewing, New Jersey 08628.

21.  Defendant J. Crew International, Inc. is a for-profit corporation formed and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business at 770 Broadway, New
York, New York 10003, and thus is a citizen of Delaware and New York. Defendant J. Crew
International, Inc. may be served with process by service upon its registered agent, Corporation
Service Company, 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, Delaware 19808.

22.  Defendant Chinos Holdings, Inc. is a for-profit corporation formed and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business at 770 Broadway, New
York, New York 10003, and thus is a citizen of Delaware and New York. Defendant Chinos
Holdings, Inc. may be served with process by service upon its registered agent, Corporation

Service Company, 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, Delaware 19808,
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23.  Defendant Chinos Intermediate Holdings A, Inc. is a for-profit corporation formed
and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business at 770
Broadway, New York, New York 10003, and thus is a citizen of Delaware and New York.
Defendant Chinos Intermediate Holdings A, Inc. may be served with process by service upon its
registered agent, Corporation Service Company, 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington,
Delaware 19808.

24,  Defendant Chinos Intermediate Holdings B, Inc. is a for-profit corporation formed
and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business at 770
Broadway, New York, New York 10003, and thus is a citizen of Delaware and New York.
Defendant Chinos Intermediate Holdings B, Inc. may be served with process by service upon its
registered agent, Corporation Service Company, 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington,
Delaware 19808.

25.  Upon information and belief, all Defendants have a parent-subsidiary relationship,
in that Defendant J. Crew International, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Defendant J. Crew,
Inc., which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Defendant J. Crew Operating Corp., which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Defendant J. Crew Group, Inc., which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Defendant Chinos Intermediate Holdings B, Inc., which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Defendant Chinos Intermediate Holdings A, Inc., which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Defendant Chinos Holdings, Inc.

26. At all times during the relevant class period, Defendants together owned and
operated, and continue to own and operate, more than 300 J. Crew and J. Crew Factory retail stores
throughout the United States. Defendants operate the J. Crew Factory retail stores out of their

headquarters in New York, which operation entails, infer alia, the creation and implementation of
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the advertising, marketing, and sales policies described herein, including the planning of in-store
sales, design of advertising placards, and pricing of items.

27.  Defendants also own and operate the online J. Crew and J. Crew Factory retail
websites, which advertise, market, and sell retail products in every state in the United States,
including New York and New Jersey, and have done so throughout the relevant class period.
Defendants operate the online J. Crew Factory website out of their headquarters in New York,
which operation entails, infer alia, the creation and implementation of the advertising, marketing,
and sales policies described herein, including the planning of website sales and the pricing and
sale of items.

28.  Defendants created the policies and procedures described herein and, at all times
during the relevant class period, participated in, endorsed, implemented, and performed the
conduct alleged herein.

29.  Plaintiff specifically alleges that Defendants’ advertising and marketing campaigns
and their sales policies and practices relating to both their retail stores and website were created
by Defendants at their principal place of business in New York, and were disseminated nationwide
from New York. Accordingly, the unlawful acts and practices alleged herein originated in New
York, and Plaintiff alleges that Defendants’ marketing, advertising, and sale of merchandise from
their retail stores and websites are governed by, inter alia, New York law, regardless of where in
the United States the merchandise was purchased.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

30.  This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28

U.S.C. § 1332. Plaintiff and Defendants are citizens of different states and the amount in

controversy exceeds the sum of $5,000,000.
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31.  Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(3) because
Defendants were within the relevant class period, and continue to be, citizens of this district, in
that the principal place of business for each Defendant is located in this district. Moreover,
Defendants regularly transacted and continue to transact business in this district, in that all items
sold on Defendants” website are sold from this district.

32.  This Court has in personam jurisdiction over the Defendants because, inter alia,
Defendants: (a) are headquartered in this district; (b) transacted business in this district; (c)
maintained continuous and systematic contacts in this district prior to and during the class period;
and (d) purposefully availed themselves of the benefits of doing business in this district.
Accordingly, the Defendants maintain minimum contacts with this district which are more than
sufficient to subject them to service of process and to comply with due process of law.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

33.  Defendants are each in the for-profit business of selling apparel and other personal
items in their J. Crew and J. Crew Factory retail stores, as well as via their online J. Crew and J.
Crew Factory retail websites.

34.  This lawsuit concerns Defendants’ false and misleading advertising, marketing, and
sales practices with respect to their illusory “sales” and “discounting” of items sold on their online

J. Crew Factory website, www.factory.jerew.com, and in their J. Crew Factory retail stores.

Defendants’ Online Sales Practices

35.  One of the most effective techniques in advertising is for a seller to offer customers
a reduction from either the seller’s own former price for an item or the price at which the item or
an equivalent item is sold by a competitor.

36.  This technique is widely used because sellers know the truth of the old adage
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“everyone loves a bargain,” and they understand that a product’s “regular” price — the price at
which a product is generally sold in the marketplace — matters to consumers.

37.  Indeed, numerous studies show that consumers are much more likely to purchase
an item if they are told that it is being offered for sale at a discounted price that is less than the
item’s everyday, regular price, or that the item is worth more than the asking price.

38.  For example, a well-respected study by Dhruv Grewal & Larry D. Compeau
entitled Comparative Price Advertising: Informative or Deceptive?, 11 J. of Pub. Pol’y & Mktg.
52, 55 (Spring 1992), concludes that “[b]y creating an impression of savings, the presence of a
higher reference price enhances [consumers’] perceived value and willingness to buy [a]
product.”

39. Numerous other articles and studies have reached the same conclusion. See
Compeau & Grewal, Comparative Price Advertising: Believe It or Not, J. of Consumer Affairs,
Vol. 36, No. 2, at 287 (Winter 2002) (noting that “decades of research support the conclusion
that advertised reference prices do indeed enhance consumers’ perceptions of the value of
the deal” and further concluding that “[c]onsumers are influenced by comparison prices even
when the stated reference prices are implausibly high.”); Joan Lindsey-Mullikin & Ross D.
Petty, Marketing Tactics Discouraging Price Search: Deception and Competition, 64 J. of Bus.
Research 67 (January 2011) (concluding that “[r]eference price ads strongly influence
consumer perceptions of value”); Praveen K. Kopalle & Joan Lindsey-Mullikin, The Impact of
External Reference Price on Consumer Price Expectations, 79 J. of Retailing 225 (2003)
(concluding that “research has shown that retailer-supplied reference prices clearly enhance
buyers’ perceptions of value” and “have a significant impact on consumer purchasing

decisions”); Dr. Jerry B. Gotlieb & Dr. Cyndy Thomas Fitzgerald, An Investigation Into the
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Effects of Advertised Reference Prices on the Price Consumers Are Willing to Pay for the Product,
6 J. of App’d Bus. Res. 1 (1990) (concluding that “consumers are likely to be misled into a
willingness to pay a higher price for a product simply because the product has a higher
reference price”).

40.  Where the comparison prices listed by the seller are genuine — where the buyer
really is getting an item for a lower price than the one at which it is ordinarily sold — then the
“bargain” promised in a seller’s advertising may be real.

41. Unfortunately, that is not the case here.

42.  Inthe case at bar, each item offered for sale by Defendants on their J. Crew Factory
website is, and was during the class period, assigned a “valued at” price, which purports to be the
“original” or “regular” price of that item.

43. This “valued at” price is illusory, however, because no item on Defendants’ website
is ever sold, or even offered for sale, at the listed “valued at” price.

44.  Rather, each item is and always has been offered for sale at a price that is much
lower than its assigned “valued at” price, pursuant to a continuously-running series of limited-
time, site-wide “sales.”

45.  These sales purport to discount, for a limited time only, all items on Defendants’
website by some percentage or amount off the “valued at” prices.

46. By way of example, Defendants will hold a limited-time “sale” where
“EVERYTHING” on their website is advertised — by way of a brightly-colored banner at the top
of their website page — to be “50% OFF.” See Exhibit A, 4/12/2017 Printout from Defendants’

website https:/factory.jcrew.com, advertising a “50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale with “NO

EXCLUSIONS.”

10
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47.  During such a sale, every item on Defendants® website will be offered for sale at a
purportedly “discounted” price that is approximately equal to “50% OFF” the item’s “valued at”
price.

48.  Pursuant to the advertised sale, Defendants “strike through” the “valued at” price
of each item and offer the item for sale a discounted or “sale” price, termed “your price.”

49.  For example, during the above-described “50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale,
Defendants offered a shirt for sale on its website as follows:

valued at $29:50 your price $14.99
See Exhibit A, 4/12/2017 website printout, offering a Boys’ Long-Sleeve Glow-In-The-Dark
Paleontologist Storybook T-Shirt for $14.99 as part of the “50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale.

50.  Thus, Defendants represent to their customers that the “valued at” price is the
“original” or “regular” price of the item offered for sale, and “your price” — the actual selling price
— is a “sale” price that, pursuant to the sale, is discounted “50% OFF” the “valued at” price.

51.  Because the items on Defendants’ website were never sold or offered for sale at
their “valued at” prices, however, the items are not actually discounted by 50%, and thus the “50%
OFF” discount advertised by Defendants is false and misieading.

52. Indeed, the shirt identified above, offered for sale at a price of $14.99, was not even
discounted by “50% OFF” its “valued at” price of $29.50, but rather was discounted only by 49%,
as 50% off of $29.50 is $14.75.

53.  Moreover, Defendants will notify customers that the advertised sales and
discounted prices are valid only for a limited time, such as from “April 12, 2017, 12:01 am ET

through ... April 16, 2017, 11:59 pm ET.” See Exhibit A, 4/12/2017 Printout from Defendants’

website https:/factory.jerew.com, advertising the limited time sale.

11
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54.  Yetupon the expiration of that sale, Defendants will hold a different “sale™ in which
everything on their website is advertised to be, for example, “UP TO 50% OFF” for some period
of time.

55.  Despite the differences in Defendants’ characterization of the terms of each
advertised sale, the actual prices of the items offered for sale on Defendants’ website remain
identical or substantially similar from sale to sale.

56. Defendants follow each sale with another similar, albeit slightly different sale,
which results in the same or a very similar “discounted” price for each item on Defendants’
website.

57.  This series of successive sales continues ad infinitum, such that all of the items on
Defendants website are always “on sale” and offered to the public at a purported discount, and
moreover remain at identical or substantially similar prices every day.

58.  On the rare day when Defendants are not holding an advertised site-wide sale, but
rather limit their advertised sale to a certain category of items — e.g., “UP TO 60% OFF NEW
ARRIVALS” — they still do not offer any items for sale on their website at their fictitious “valued
at” prices, but instead continue to offer all items for sale at prices that are substantially similar or
identical to the items’ purported “discounted” prices during a former site-wide “sale.”

59, For example, the above-described shirt, which was purportedly discounted to
“$14.99” on Defendants’ website during the advertised “50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale on April
12, 2017, was also offered for sale at the identical price of “$14.99” during the immediately
preceding sale (an “UP TO 50% OFF EVERYTHING” on April 10, 2017), as well as during the
two sales prior to that (an advertised “UP TO 60% OFF NEW ARRIVALS” sale on April 7, 2017

and an advertised “EXTRA 50% OFF CLEARANCE” sale on March 31, 2017).

12
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Defendants’ In-Store Sales Practices

60.  Aswith their online sales, each item offered for sale by Defendants in their physical
J. Crew Factory retail stores is, and was during the class period, assigned a price that is set forth
on the item’s price tag, which purports to be the “original” or “regular” price of the item.

61.  This in-store, ticketed price for each item is identical to the item’s online “valued
at” price.

62.  Like the online “valued at” price, the in-store ticketed price is illusory because no
item in Defendants’ retail stores is ever sold or offered for sale at the ticketed price.

63.  Rather, each item is and always has been offered for sale in Defendants’ retail stores
at a price that is much lower than its ticketed price, pursuant to a continuously-running series of
limited-time, store-wide “sales.”

64.  These sales purport to discount, for a limited time only, all items in Defendants’
retail stores by a certain percentage or amount off the ticketed prices.

65.  Pursuant to an advertised in-store sale, Defendants display either the purported
“sale” price or the percentage discount to be applied to the ticketed price on large placards
prominently placed around the stores.

66.  For example, during an advertised “50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale on April 8,
2017, Defendants displayed the following placards throughout their retail stores:

50% OFF EVERYTHING

ALL MEN’S SHORTS TAKE 50% OFF TICKETED PRICE

50% OFF TICKETED PRICE

See Exhibit B, collection of photographs taken at one of Defendants’ J.Crew Factory retail stores

on April 8, 2017.

13
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67.  During the same sale, Defendants also displayed, for example, a large placard
setting forth a sale price of “$29.95” above a rack of shirts with ticketed prices of “$59.50.” See
id.

68.  Thus, Defendants represent to their customers that the ticketed prices on their in-
store items are the “original” or “regular” prices of those item, and the actual selling prices are
“sale” prices that, pursuant to the advertised sale, are discounted “50% OFF” the ticketed prices.

69. By way of example, during the above-described “50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale,
Defendants advertised via placards that “everything” in their retail stores was on “sale” at prices

that were discounted “50% OFF.” See id.

70.  During this sale, Defendants offered for sale every item in their retail stores at
“discounted” prices equal to approximately 50% off the items’ ticketed prices. Thus, the shirt with
a ticketed price of “$59.50” was offered at a sale price of “$29.95,” which represents a 49.66%
discount. Seeid.

71.  Because the items in Defendants’ retail stores were never sold or offered for sale at
their ticketed prices, however, the items were not actually discounted by 50%, and thus the “50%

OFF” discounts advertised by Defendants are false and misleading.

72.  Moreover, Defendants will notify customers that the advertised sales and
discounted prices are valid only for a limited time. Yet each “sale” will be followed immediately
by a different “sale,” which will result in the same or a very similar sale price for every item in

Defendants’ stores.

73.  Despite various differences in Defendants® specific characterization of the terms of
each advertised sale, the actual prices of the items offered for sale in Defendants’ retail stores

remain identical or substantially similar from sale to sale.

14
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74.  Defendants follow each sale with another similar, albeit slightly different sale,
which results in the same or a very similar “discounted” price for each item in Defendants’ stores.
75.  This series of successive sales continues ad infinitum, such that all of the items in
Defendants® stores are always “on sale” and offered to the public at a purported discount, and

moreover remain at identical or substantially similar prices every day.

] * *

76.  Thus, the items on Defendants’ website and in Defendants’ stores always were and
continue to be either advertised as being “on sale” or offered for sale at prices lower than their
“valued at” and/or ticketed prices.

77. Moreover, all items on Defendants’ website and in Defendants’ stores always were
and continue to be offered for sale to customers at the same or substantially similar prices, which
Defendants advertise to be “sale” or “discounted” prices, regardless of the specific terms of the
advertised sale in effect on that specific day.

78.  Because Defendants’ purported sales and discounted prices never end, but rather
continue on a daily basis and are available anytime a customer visits their website or retail stores,

they are not actually sales or discounted prices at all, but rather constitute the everyday, regular

prices of the items.

79.  The law recognizes the abuses that can flow from the use of fictitious comparison
prices and phantom discounts off such prices, and consequently prohibits such practices.

80.  Specifically, Defendants’ practices violate 16 C.F.R. § 233.1, which specifically
prohibits the advertising of false, “phantom™ price reductions and discounts off inflated, fictitious

“regular” prices that never actually existed. See id., stating:

15
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§ 233.1 Former price comparisons.

(a) One of the most commonly used forms of bargain advertising is to
offer a reduction from the advertiser’s own former price for an article.
If the former price is the actual, bona fide price at which the article was
offered to the public on a regular basis for a reasonably substantial
period of time, it provides a legitimate basis for the advertising of a price
comparison. Where the former price is genuine, the bargain being
advertised is a true one. If, on the other hand, the former price being
advertised is not bona fide but fictitious — for example, where an
artificial, inflated price was established for the purpose of enabling the
subsequent offer of a large reduction — the “bargain” being advertised is

a false one; the purchaser is not receiving the unusual value he expects.
In such a case, the “reduced” price is, in reality, probably just the seller’s

regular price.

(b) A former price is not necessarily fictitious merely because no sales at
the advertised price were made. The advertiser should be especially

careful, however, in such a case, that the price is one at which the product
was openly and actively offered for sale, for a reasonably substantial
period of time, in the recent, regular course of his business, honestly and
in good faith — and, of course, not for the purpose of establishing a
fictitious higher price on which a deceptive comparison might be based.
And the advertiser should scrupulously avoid any implication that a

former price is a selling, not an asking price (for example, by use of such

language as, “Formerly sold at $___ ), unless substantial sales at that
price were actually made.

(d) Other illustrations of fictitious price comparisons could be given. An

advertiser might use a price at which he never offered the article at all;

he might feature a price which was not used in the regular course of
business, or which was not used in the recent past but at some remote

period in the past, without making disclosure of that fact; he might use
a price that was not openly offered to the public, or that was not
maintained for a reasonable length of time, but was immediately
reduced.

(¢) If_the former price is set forth in the advertisement, whether
accompanied or not by descriptive terminology such as “Regularly,”
“Usually,” “Formerly.” etc., the advertiser should make certain that the
former price is not a fictitious one. If the former price, or the amount or
percentage of reduction, is not stated in the advertisement, as when the
ad merely states, “Sale,” the advertiser must take care that the amount
of reduction is not so insignificant as to be meaningless. It should be
sufficiently large that the consumer, if he knew what it was, would

16
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believe that a genuine bargain or saving was being offered. An advertiser
who claims that an item has been “Reduced to $9.99,” when the former
price was $10, is misleading the consumer, who will understand the claim
to mean that a much greater, and not merely nominal, reduction was
being offered.

81. In the case at bar, the “valued at” prices of the items on Defendants’ website, and
the ticketed prices of the items in Defendants’ retail stores, are “mot bona fide but fictitious”
under 16 C.F.R. § 233.1 because the items were never sold or offered for sale at those “valued at”
or ticketed prices for a “reasonably substantial period of time.”

82.  Indeed, it is alleged that Defendants never sold or offered for sale any of the items
on their J. Crew Factory website at their “valued at” prices, and never sold or offered for sale any
of the items in their J. Crew Factory retail stores at their ticketed prices.

83.  Consequently, the purported “reduced” prices are “in reality, ... [Defendants’]
regular price{s]” and “the ‘bargain[s]’ being advertised” by Defendants are “false.” 16 C.F.R.
§ 233.1.

84.  What happened to Plaintiff Coladonato helps illustrate Defendants’ unlawful
practices described herein.

85. Between 2015 and the present, Plaintiff made numerous purchases both from
Defendants’ J. Crew Factory website and from Defendants’ physical J. Crew Factory retail stores.

86.  All of the items purchased by Plaintiff were advertised as being on sale, and were
offered for sale by Defendants at purported discounts off their stated “valued at” and ticketed prices
at the time Plaintiff purchased the items.

87.  None of the items purchased by Plaintiff were ever sold or offered for sale at their

advertised “valued at” and ticketed prices, however; thus, the sales and discounted prices

advertised by Defendants were illusory.
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88.  For example, on or about February 22, 2015, Plaintiff purchased a 3” Chino Short,
Item 36234 (“Chino Short™), from Defendants’ J. Crew Factory website.

89. The Chino Short was included in one of Defendants’ site-wide sales, and was
advertised to be discounted at least 40% off the “valued at” price of $34.50, at a purported sale
price of $20.83.

90.  Plaintiff paid Defendants $20.83 for the Chino Short on February 22, 2015.

91.  The listed “valued at” price of $34.50 for the Chino Short purchased by Plaintiff
was an unlawful fictitious former price under 16 C.F.R. § 233.1 because the Chino Short was not
sold or offered for sale at that price for a reasonably substantial period of time.

92.  Indeed, the Chino Short was never sold or offered for sale at the “valued at” price
of $34.50, but was always sold or offered for sale at a price approximately equal to — or less than
— the purported discounted, “sale” price of $20.83 that Plaintiff paid for the item.

93.  In fact, according to the publicly-available price history of the Chino Short, it is
most commonly offered for sale on Defendants’ website at a price of $16.95.

94,  For example, the Chino Short was offered for sale on Defendants’ website at a price
of $16.95: as part of a “30% OFF NEW ARRIVALS” sale on August 15, 2015; as part of a “50
STYLES UNDER $50” sale on January 31, 2016; as part of an “UP TO 60% OFF NEW
ARRIVALS?” sale on April 7, 2017; and as part of an “UP TO 50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale on
April 10, 2017.

95.  Other sale prices for the Chino Short include a low of $14.95 (as part of a “50%
OFF EVERYTHING” sale on April 12, 2017 and an “UP TO 60% OFF EVERYTHING” sale on

June 1, 2017) to a high of $17.00 (as part of an “EXTRA 50% OFF CLEARANCE?” sale on March

31, 2017).
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96.  Thus, it is alleged that the regular, everyday price of the Chino Short is actually
$16.95 rather than the asserted “valued at” price of $34.50. Consequently, when Plaintiff
purchased the Chino Short for $20.83, she was not getting the 40% discount claimed by
Defendants, and indeed was not getting any discount at all. Rather, she actually paid a price that
was higher than the actual regular, everyday price of the item.

97.  Had the Chino Short actually been discounted by 40% off its regular, everyday
price, as advertised by Defendants, Plaintiff would have been charged only $10.17 for the item.

98.  Then, on or about March 17, 2016, Plaintiff purchased a pair of Seaside Sandals,
Item E8846 (“Seaside Sandals™), from Defendants’ J. Crew Factory website.

99. On that date, Defendants’ website advertised an “UP TO 60% OFF
EVERYTHING” sale in large letters on a brightly-colored banner across the top of the page.

100. Defendants’ website further represented that the sale was valid for a limited time
only: “from March 17,2016, 12:01am ET through March 21, 2016, 11:59 pm ET.”

101. Despite the “UP TO 60% OFF” representation on Defendants’ webstte, the Seaside
Sandals were offered for sale at a price of $35.50 — an approximate 40% discount off the assigned
“valued at™ price of $59.50.

102. Plaintiff paid Defendants $35.50 for the Seaside Sandals on March 17, 2016.

103. The listed “valued at” price of $59.50 for the Seaside Sandals purchased by Plaintiff
was an unlawful fictitious former price under 16 C.F.R. § 233.1 because the Seaside Sandals were
not sold or offered for sale at that price for a reasonably substantial period of time.

104. Indeed, the Seaside Sandals were never sold or offered for sale at the “valued at”
price of $59.50, but was always sold or offered for sale at a price approximately equal to — or less

than — the purported discounted, “sale” price of $35.50 that Plaintiff paid for the item.

19



Case 1:17-cv-04287-UA Document 3 Filed 06/08/17 Page 20 of 52

105. In fact, according to the publicly-available price history of the Seaside Sandals,
they are most commonly offered for sale on Defendants’ website at a price of $24.99.

106. For example, the Seaside Sandals were offered for sale on Defendants’ website at
a price of $24.99 during four consecutive “sales:” on March 31, 2017 as part of an “EXTRA 50%
OFF CLEARANCE?” sale; on April 7, 2017 as part of an “UP TO 60% OFF NEW ARRIVALS”
sale; on April 10, 2017 as part of an “UP TO 50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale; and on April 12,
2017 as part of a “50% OFF EVERYTHING"” sale.

107.  Thus, it is alleged that the regular, everyday price of the Seaside Sandals is actually
$24.99 rather than the asserted “valued at” price of $59.50. Consequently, when Plaintiff
purchased the Seaside Sandals for $35.50, she was not getting the “UP TO 60% OFF” discount
claimed by Defendants, and indeed was not getting any discount at all. Rather, she actually paid
a price that was higher than the actual regular, everyday price of the item.

108. Had the Seaside Sandals actually been discounted by 60% off their regular,
everyday price, as advertised by Defendants, Plaintiff would have been charged only $10.00 for
the item.

109. Morcover, the “UP TO 60% OFF EVERYTHING” advertisement, which was
displayed on Defendants’ J. Crew Factory website when Plaintiff purchased the Seaside Sandals
on March 17, 2016, is contrary to New Jersey law, which prohibits retailers from advertising only
the maximum percentage discount in connection with a sale, or to qualify such advertisement as
“up to” this maximum percentage discount, without also stating the minimum percentage discount
associated with the sale. See N.J.A.C. § 13:45A-9.5(a)(1).

110.  Thereafter, on November 25, 2016, Plaintiff purchased two shirts from the J. Crew

Factory retail store located in the Gloucester Premium Outlets in Blackwood, New Jersey.
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111. Both shirts were part of a storewide “Black Friday” sale, which Defendants
advertised as a discount of “60% OFF EVERYTHING” via large in-store placards. Defendants
further represented that the sale was valid only for a limited time, through Sunday, November 27,
2016.

112.  The first shirt purchased by Plaintiff was a Boys’ Long-Sleeve Glow-in-the-Dark
Paleontologist Storybook T-Shirt, Item F9528 (“Paleontologist T-Shirt”), which was advertised
via a large, brightly-colored, in-store placard to be discounted 60% off the ticketed price of $29.50,
at a purported sale price of $11.80.

113. The second was a Boys’ Long-Sleeve Dino Storybook T-Shirt, Item F9526 (“Dino
T-Shirt™), which also was advertised via a large, brightly-colored, in-store placard to be discounted
60% off the ticketed price of $32.50, at a purported sale price of $13.00.

114. Plaintiff paid Defendants $11.80 for the Paleontologist T-Shirt and $13.00 for the
Dino T-Shirt on November 25, 2016.

115. Plaintiff’s receipt confirmed that both shirts were represented by Defendants to be
on sale at a discount of 60% off. See Exhibit C, Plaintiff’s receipt stating “Extra 60% Discount™
off the ticketed prices of each shirt.

116.  The ticketed price of $29.50 for the Paleontologist T-Shirt purchased by Plaintiff
was an unlawful fictitious former price under 16 C.F.R. § 233.1 because the Paleontologist T-Shirt
was not sold or offered for sale at that price for a reasonably substantial period of time,

117. Indeed, the Paleontologist T-Shirt was never sold or offered for sale at the ticketed
price of $29.50, but was always sold or offered for sale at a price approximately equal to the
purported discounted, “sale” price of $11.80 that Plaintiff paid for the item.

118. In fact, according to the publicly-available price history of the Paleontologist T-
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Shirt, it is most commonly offered for sale by Defendant at a price of $14.99.

119. For example, the Paleontologist T-Shirt was offered for sale on Defendants’
website at a price of $14.99 during four consecutive “sales:” on March 31, 2017 as part of an
“EXTRA 50% OFF CLEARANCE” sale; on April 7, 2017 as part of an “UP TO 60% OFF NEW
ARRIVALS” sale; on April 10, 2017 as part of an “UP TO 50% OFF EVERYTHING?” sale; and
on April 12, 2017 as part of a “50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale.

120. Thus, it is alleged that the regular, everyday price of the Paleontologist T-Shirt is
actually $14.99 rather than the asserted ticketed price of $29.50. Consequently, when Plaintiff
purchased the Paleontologist T-Shirt for $11.80, she was actually getting a discount of only
approximately 21% off, rather than the 60% off discount claimed by Defendants.

121. Had the Paleontologist T-Shirt actually been discounted by 60% off its regular,
everyday price, as advertised by Defendants, Plaintiff would have been charged only $6.00 for the
item.

122.  Similarly, the ticketed price of $32.50 for the Dino T-Shirt purchased by Plaintiff
was an unlawful fictitious former price under 16 C.F.R. § 233.1 because the Dino T-Shirt was not
sold or offered for sale at that price for a reasonably substantial period of time.

123.  Indeed, the Dino T-Shirt was never sold or offered for sale at the ticketed price of
$29.50, but was always sold or offered for sale at a price approximately equal to the purported
discounted, “sale” price of $13.00 that Plaintiff paid for the item.

124. In fact, according to the publicly-available price history of the Dino T-Shirt, it is
most commonly offered for sale by Defendant at a price of $14.99.

125.  For example, the Dino T-Shirt was offered for sale on Defendants’ website at a

price of $14.99 during four consecutive “sales:® on March 31, 2017 as part of an “EXTRA 50%
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OFF CLEARANCE” sale; on April 7, 2017 as part of an “UP TO 60% OFF NEW ARRIVALS”
sale; on April 10, 2017 as part of an “UP TO 50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale; and on April 12,
2017 as part of a “50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale. The Dino T-Shirt was also offered for sale at
a price of $14.99 on June 1, 2017 as part of an “UP TO 60% OFF EVERYTHING” sale.

126. Thus, it is alleged that the regular, everyday price of the Dino T-Shirt is actually
$14.99 rather than the asserted ticketed price of $32.50. Consequently, when Plaintiff purchased
the Dino T-Shirt for $13.00, she was actually getting a discount of only approximately 13% off,
rather than the 60% off discount claimed by Defendants.

127. Had the Dino T-Shirt actually been discounted by 60% off its regular, everyday
price, as advertised by Defendants, Plaintiff would have been charged only $6.00 for the item.

128.  Accordingly, the “valued at” and ticketed prices assigned to each of the four above-
listed items that Plaintiff purchased, and upon which Defendants’ advertised discounts were based,
were fictitious, as none of the items were sold at those “valued at” or ticketed prices for a
reasonably substantial period of time (if ever).

129. Because the “valued at” and ticketed prices were false, the advertised discounts
allegedly applied by Defendants to Plaintiff’s purchases were similarly false.

130. Indeed, the two items that Plaintiff purchased online were not actually on sale or
discounted at all when Plaintiff purchased them, as represented by Defendants. Rather, the
purported “sale” price that Plaintiff paid for the items were actually higher than the items’ regular,
everyday prices.

131. Similarly, the two items that Plaintiff purchased in-store were actually discounted

far less than the 60% off claimed by Defendants.
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132. Notably, two of Defendants’ “sales” highlighted above — the March 31, 2017
“EXTRA 50% OFF CLEARANCE” sale and the April 7, 2017 “UP TO 60% OFF NEW
ARRIVALS?” sale — did not directly apply to the Seaside Sandals, Paleontologist T-Shirt, and Dino
T-Shirt purchased by Plaintiff, as none of the three items were identified either as “Clearance”
items or “New Arrivals.” Yet, during these two sales, Defendants offered the three items
purchased by Plaintiff for salc at the exact same prices as they were offered for sale during the
April 10, 2017 “UP TO 50% OFF EVERYTHING” sale and the April 12, 2017 “50% OFF
EVERYTHING” sale — both which of clearly covered all three items.

133, This further supports Plaintiff’s allegations that Defendants’ purported “sale”
prices are not actually discounted at all, but rather are in fact the everyday, regular prices of the
items offered for sale by Defendants on their website and in their retail stores.

134. Defendants’ misrepresentations about their limited-time sales, fictitious former
prices, and significant discounts concerning the items purchésed by Plaintiff were calculated and
intended to, and did in fact, induce Plaintiff’s purchases. Had Plaintiff known that the items she
purchased were not on sale as advertised, but instead were being sold that their everyday regular
prices — or at prices that were in fact higher than their everyday regular prices — she never would
have purchased the items.

135. Indeed, at the time Plaintiff purchased the Chino Short and Seaside Sandals from
Defendants’ website, she reasonably understood Defendants’ use of the phrase “valued at” to be a
representation of the actual price at which Defendants actually sold the items at some point in time,
and that the difference between the purported “sale” price and the “valued at” price was a
representation that she was being offered an actual percentage discount off the actual price at which

Defendants had previously sold the items.
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136.  Similarly, at the time Plaintiff purchased the Paleontologist and Dino T-Shirts from
Defendants’ retail store, she reasonably understood Defendants’ ticketed price to be a
representation of the actual price at which Defendants actually sold the items at some point in time,
and that the difference between the purported “sale” price and the ticketed price was a
representation that she was being offered an actual percentage discount off the actual price at which
Defendants had previously sold the items.

137.  This was exactly the understanding that Defendants intended their actions to create
in Plaintiff and the other class members, and the entirety of Defendants’ actions was intended by
Defendants to create such a misleading impression.

138. What happened to Plaintiff was not an accident or an isolated incident.

139. Rather, it was part of a uniform policy in which Defendants engaged in a systematic
scheme of false and misleading advertising, marketing, and sales practices with the purpose of
persuading customers to purchase items from Defendants’ online J. Crew Factory website and
physical J. Crew Factory retail stores.

140. Defendants’ specific unlawful practices include:

a. Setting an arbitrary “valued at” price for every item on their website, and
an arbitrary ticketed price for every item in their retail store, which prices purport to be
each item’s “original” or “regular” price, despite the fact that no item is or was ever sold
or offered for sale at these prices;

b. Continuously holding site- and store-wide sales that advertise and purport
to offer items for sale at a specified percentage discount or amount off their “valued at”

and ticketed prices, when the “discounted” sale prices do not actually represent the
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advertised savings since the items were never offered for sale at the “valued at” and ticketed

prices;

c. Representing that the sale prices are available only for a limited time, when
each sale is followed by another similar sale offering the same items at same or
substantially similar prices; and

d. Representing that items are on sale and offered at specified discounts and
discounted prices when in fact the items are being offered for sale at their everyday, regular
prices or discounts that are much lower than those advertised.

141. As described herein, the “sale” prices advertised by Defendants are not actually
discounted at all, but rather are the everyday, regular prices of the items.

142. Indeed, Defendants’ purported “discounts™ described herein did not exist. Rather,
Defendants always sold their items at, or very close to, the “discounted” price. As such,
Defendants’ allegedly reduced, “sale” price was, in fact, Defendants’ regular price.

143. To the extent Defendants ever provided any discount at all, the actual discount
provided was far less than the advertised discount.

144. These deceptive advertising, marketing, and sales practices were kept secret, and
were affirmatively and fraudulent concealed from customers by Defendants throughout the class
period. As a result, Plaintiff and her fellow J. Crew Factory website and retail store customers
were unaware of Defendants’ unlawful conduct alleged herein and did not know they were actually
paying the everyday, regular prices for Defendants’ products — or, at times, a higher price than

Defendants’ regular, everyday prices — rather than the advertised, purported discount prices.
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145.  Further, Plaintiff and her fellow J. Crew Factory website and retail store customers
were unaware that they were not actually receiving the “% OFF” discounts advertised by
Defendants, but rather were receiving only a fraction of that discount (if any at all).

146. Plaintiff and the class members did not discover, nor could they have discovered
through reasonable diligence, that Defendants were violating the law until shortly before this
litigation was initially commenced, because Defendants used methods to avoid detection and to
conceal their violations of the law.

147.  Defendants did not tell or otherwise inform Plaintiff or the class members that they
were engaged in the deceptive advertising, marketing, and sales practices alleged herein. By their
very nature, Defendants’ unlawful practices were self-concealing.

148. In sum, Defendants induced Plaintiff and the class to purchase items from
Defendants’ online website and retail stores, for Defendants’ profit, with the promise of sales and
discounts that never existed. As a result of this unlawful, deceptive conduct, Plaintiff and the class
have suffered damages set forth herein.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

149.  Class Definition: Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Rules
23(b)(2) and 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, seeking damages and injunctive
relief under state consumer protection statutes and common law on behalf of herself and all
members of the following proposed Class:

All United States citizens who purchased any item from Defendants’ J.

Crew Factory website or retail stores between June 6, 2011 and the
present,

150. Sub-Class Definition: Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Rules

23(b)(2) and 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, seeking damages and injunctive
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relief under state consumer protection statutes and common law on behalf of herself and all

members of the following proposed Sub-Class:

All New Jersey citizens who purchased any item from Defendants’ J.
Crew Factory website or retail stores between June 6, 2011 and the
present.

151. Each of the classes for whose benefit this action is brought is so numerous that
joinder of all members is impracticable.

152. The exact number and identities of the persons who fit within each proposed class
are contained in Defendants’ records and can be easily ascertained from those records.

153. The proposed class and subclass are each composed of at least 10,000 persons.

154. Common questions of law and fact exist as to each class member.

155.  All claims in this action arise exclusively from uniform policies and procedures of

Defendants as outlined herein.

156. No violations alleged in this Complaint are a result of any individualized oral
communications or individualized interaction of any kind between class members and Defendants

or anyone else.

157. There are common questions of law and fact affecting the rights of the class

members, including, irnter alia, the following:

a. whether the uniform advertising, marketing, and sales practices alleged herein
exist;

b. whether Defendants ever sold items or offered items for sale at their assigned
“valued at” and/or ticketed prices;

¢. whether Defendants’ claimed “% OFF” price reductions accurately depicted the
actual discounts provided to customers;

d. whether Defendants’ “sale” prices actually reflected the advertised savings;

e. whether Defendants’ advertised sale prices were in fact available only for the
advertised limited time;
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158.

159.

160.

f. whether Defendants deceptively advertised everyday, regular prices of their
items as “discount” or “sale” prices;

g. the length of time Defendants engaged in the practices alleged herein;
h. whether the alleged practices violated state consumer protection laws;
i. whether the alleged practices constituted a breach of contract;

j. whether the alleged practices constituted a breach of the implied covenant of
good faith and fair dealing;

k. whether the alleged practices constituted a breach of an express warranty;
1. whether Defendants were unjustly enriched by the alleged practices;

m. the nature and extent of the injury to the class and the measure of class-wide
damages; and

n. whether each class is entitled to injunctive relief in the form of an order
directing Defendant to send a court-approved notice to all class members,
advising of the conduct alleged herein, as well as an order enjoining the conduct
alleged herein and establishing a court-administered program to provide
refunds of the overcharges to all such class members.

Plaintiff is a member of the classes she seeks to represent.
The claims of Plaintiff are not only typical of all class members, they are identical.

All claims of Plaintiff and the classes arise from the same course of conduct, policy

and procedures as outlined herein.

161.

162.

163.

164.

All claims of Plaintiff and the classes are based on the exact same legal theories.
Plaintiff seeks the same relief for herself as for every other class member.
Plaintiff has no interest antagonistic to or in conflict with the classes.

Plaintiff will thoroughly and adequately protect the interests of the classes, having

retained qualified and competent legal counsel to represent herself and the classes.

165.

Defendant has acted and/or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the

classes, thereby making appropriate injunctive and declaratory relief for each class as a whole.
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166. Moreover, Plaintiff and each class has been subjected to the alleged unlawful
policies complained of herein, and will be subjected to such policies in the future. Indeed, Plaintiff
intends to purchase items from Defendants’ J. Crew Factory website and retail stores in the future,
and seeks to ensure that Defendants’ “valued at” and ticketed prices represent actual, non-fictitious
prices and that Defendants’ advertised “% OFF” discounts represent actual sale prices.

167. The prosecution of separate actions by individual class members would create a
risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual members of each class,
which would confront Defendant with incompatible standards of conduct.

168. Adjudications with respect to individual members of the classes would as a
practical matter be dispositive of the interests of other members not parties to the adjudications
and would substantially impair or impede their ability to protect their interests.

169. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of the controversy since, inter alia, the damages suffered by each class member were
not great enough to enable them to maintain separate suits against Defendants and in most, if not
all, instances were less than $5,000 per person.

170. Common questions will predominate, and there will be no unusual manageability
issues.

171.  Without the proposed class action, Defendants will likely retain the benefit of their
wrongdoing and will continue the complained-of practices, which will result in further damages
to Plaintiff and class members.

COUNT I

VIOLATION OF NEW YORK GENERAL BUSINESS LAW §§ 349 and 350
(On Behalf of the Nationwide Class)

172. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this
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Complaint as if set forth fully herein.

173.  Plaintiff brings this claim individually and on behalf of all other nationwide class
members who purchased items from Defendants’ website pursuant to New York Gen. Bus. Laws
§ 349 (“NYGBL § 349”) and § 350 (“NYGBL § 350”).

174.  Plaintiff specifically alleges that Defendants’ advertising and marketing campaigns
and their sales policies and practices relating to both their retail stores and website were created
by Defendants at their principal place of business in New York, and were disseminated nationwide
from New York. Accordingly, the unlawful acts and practices alleged herein originated in New
York, and Plaintiff alleges that Defendants’ marketing, advertising, and sale of merchandise from
their retail stores and websites are governed by, inter alia, New York law, including NYGBL §§
349 and 350, regardless of where in the United States the merchandise was purchased.

175. NYGBL § 349 prohibits “deceptive acts or practices in the conduct of any business,
trade or commerce or in the furnishing of any service in [New York}.”

176. NYGBL § 350 makes “[f]alse advertising in the conduct of any business, trade or
commerce or in the furnishing of any service” in New York unlawful.

177. Defendants’ advertising, marketing, and sales practices, as set out more fully above,
were deceptive and false in violation of NYGBL §§ 349 and 350 in that they:

a. Setand advertised an arbitrary “valued at” price for every item on their website,
and an identical arbitrary ticketed price for every item in their retail stores,
which prices were represented to be the items’ “original” or “regular” prices
despite the fact that no item was ever sold or offered for sale at that price;

b. Continuously held site- and store-wide “sales” that purported to offer items for
sale at a specified percentage discount or amount off their “valued at” and

ticketed prices, when the “discounted” sale prices did not actually represent the
advertised savings since the items were never offered for sale at the “valued at”

and ticketed prices;

c. Represented that the sale prices were available only for a limited time, when
each sale was immediately followed by another, similar sale offering the same
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items at same or substantially similar prices;

d. Represented that items were on sale and offered at discounted prices when in
fact the items were being offered for sale at their everyday, regular prices (or at
prices that were higher than their everyday, regular prices); and

e. Charged their customers the full, regular price for the items sold rather than the
advertised sale or discounted price.

178. These deceptive advertising, marketing, and sales practices originated from and
were performed at Defendants’ headquarters in New York, and therefore were the products of
“business, trade or commerce” in New York. Indeed, Defendants operate their J. Crew Factory
website out of their headquarters in New York; thus, all of the advertising and sale of items on or
from Defendants’ website occurred in New York.

179. Plaintiff seeks to enjoin these unlawful, deceptive practices on behalf of herself and
the nationwide class.

180. As described herein, there was a causal connection between Defendants’ deceptive
conduct and the injuries to Plaintiff and the nationwide class.

181. Plaintiff and each nationwide class member were intended victims of Defendants’
deceptive conduct alleged herein.

182. Plaintiff and each nationwide class member were injured in fact and lost money as
a result of Defendants’ deceptive conduct.

183. Plaintiff and each nationwide class member have been deprived of the benefit of
their bargain, which is a valid measure of loss under New York law, in that they received
something less than what was advertised on Defendants’ website — Defendants represented that
Plaintiff and the class were paying a sale price, discounted by an advertised percentage, for the
items they purchased, when in fact they were not receiving the advertised discount, and in many

instances were paying the everyday, regular price (or an even higher price) for the items they
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purchased.

184. Plaintiff and each nationwide class member believed Defendants’
misrepresentations that the items they purchased were in fact on sale and being offered at the
advertised discounted prices, and would not have purchased such items had they known that
Defendants’ advertisements were false.

185. Moreover, the Court can presume such reliance under the circumstances of the case
at bar, because the false statements regarding the prices of the items were placed by Defendants
on their website and in their retail stores for the purpose of inducing the purchase of such items,
as part of a course of conduct intended to deceive Plaintiff and the class members.

186. Consequently, the conduct of Defendants as alleged herein constitutes deceptive
acts and practices in violation of NYGBL § 349, and Defendants are liable to Plaintiff and each
nationwide class member for not less than $50.00 per person.

187. The conduct of Defendants as alleged herein also constitutes false advertising in
violation of NYGBL § 350, and Defendants are liable to Plaintiff and each nationwide class
member for not less than $500.00 per person.

188. Plaintiff and the nationwide class seek declaratory relief, restitution for monies
wrongfully obtained, disgorgement of ill-gotten revenues and/or profits, injunctive relief
prohibiting Defendants from continuing to disseminate its false and misleading statements and

conduct the aforementioned practices, and for other relief allowable under NYGBL §§ 349 and

350.
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COUNT 11
VIOLATION OF THE NEW JERSEY CONSUMER FRAUD ACT
N.J.S.A. 56:8-1, et seq.
(On Behalf of the New Jersey Subclass)

189. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this
Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

190. Plaintiff brings this claim individually and on behalf of all other New Jersey
Subclass members who were customers of Defendants’ J. Crew Factory website and retail stores.

191. The New Jersey Supreme Court has repeatedly held that the New Jersey

Consumer Fraud Act (“NJCFA™) must be construed liberally in favor of the consumer in order to

accomplish its deterrent and protective purposes. See Furst v. Einstein Moomjy, 182 N.J. 1, 11-
12 (2004) (*The Consumer Fraud Act is remedial legislation that we construe liberally to
accomplish its broad purpose of safeguarding the public.”).

192. Indeed, the courts of New Jersey have repeatedly held that the NJCFA is intended
to be one of the strongest consumer protection statutes in the nation. See New Mea Const. Corp.
v. Harper, 203 N.J. Super. 315, 319 (App. Div. 1986) (“[t]he available legislative history
demonstrates that the Act was intended to be one of the strongest consumer protection laws
in the nation.”)

193. As stated by the New Jersey Appellate Division in Dugan v. TGI Friday’s. Inc.,
2011 WL 5041391 at *3 (App. Div. 2011):

Celebrated as “one of the strongest consumer protection laws in the
nation,” the CFA has been propagated by an uninterrupted history “of

constant expansion of consumer protection.” (citations omitted)

194. The NJCFA prohibits not only a list of specifically enumerated acts, but also any
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unconscionable or deceptive commercial practice. As stated by the New Jersey Supreme Court in

Gonzalez v. Wilshire Credit Corp., 207 N.J. 557, 576 (2011):

Because the “fertility” of the human mind to invent “new schemes of
fraud is so great,” the CFA does not attempt to enumerate every
prohibited practice, for to do so would “severely retard|[ ] its broad
remedial power to root out fraud in its myriad, nefarious
manifestations.” Thus, to counteract newly devised stratagems
undermining the integrity of the marketplace, “[t]he history of the [CFA]
[has been] one of constant expansion of consumer protection.” (citations
omitted) (emphasis added)

195. As held by the District of New Jersey in Katz v. Live Nation, C.A. No. 09-3740

(D.N.J. 2010):

We find that Defendants err in their assertion that New Jersey law does
not recognize a stand-alone claim for unconscionable commercial
practice....NJCFA claims for unconscionable commercial practice need
not allege an affirmative fraudulent statement, representation, or
omission by the defendant.

196. The CFA does not require a plaintiff to plead or prove any intent to defraud. Indeed,
the CFA has been held to prohibit sharp or unfair practices, even if the defendant acts in good

faith. See Furst v. Einstein Moomjy, Inc., 182 N.J. 1, 12 (2004):

The Consumer Fraud Act is remedial legislation that we construe

liberally to accomplish its broad purpose of safegnarding the public. The

Act protects consumers from more than just “shifty, fast-talking and

deceptive merchant[s]” and “sharp practices and dealings....” It also

protects consumers from unfair practices “even when, a merchant acts

in good faith.” (emphasis added)

197. The CFA does not require a plaintiff to plead or prove “reliance” or even a

fraudulent act. Rather, the plain language of N.J.S.A. § 56:8-2 states that any deceptive and

unconscionable commercial practice violates the CFA, even if there is no actual fraud and even if

no one has actually been misled or deceived by the practice. See Skeer v. EMK Motors, Inc., 187

N.J. Super. 465, 470 (App. Div. 1982):
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Violation of the act can be shown even though 2 consumer has not in fact
been misled or deceived. N.J.S.A. § 56:8-2. It is not necessary to show

actual deceit or _a fraudulent act; any unconscionable commercial
practice is prohibited. (emphasis added)

198. An “unconscionable commercial practice” is not limited to false statements of fact
or fraud. Cowger v. Cherry Hill Mitsubishi. Inc., No. A-3408-09T4, 2011 N.J. Super. Unpub.
LEXIS 620, at *10 (Super. Ct. App. Div. Mar. 14, 2011) (“Lost in that dust-up is the fact that
the CFA not only prohibits fraud and misrepresentations but unconscionable commercial
practices as well.”)

199. Rather, the NJCFA recognizes a “stand alone” violation, even in the absence of
conduct which would constitute common law fraud, called an “unconscionable commercial
practice.”

200. As with every other aspect of the CFA, the meaning of the term “unconscionable
commercial practice” in N.J.S.A. § 56: 8-2 must be broadly defined. This catch-all term was added
to the CFA by amendment in 1971 to ensure that the Act covered “exorbitant prices, unfair

bargaining advantages and incomplete disclosures.” Skeer v. EMK Motors, Inc., 187 N.J.

Super, 465, 472 (App. Div. 1982).
201. In describing what constitutes an “unconscionable commercial practice,” the New
Jersey Supreme Court has noted that it is an amorphous concept designed to establish a broad

business ethic. See Cox v. Sears Roebuck & Co., 138 N.J. 2, 18 (N.J. 1994). As stated by the

District of New Jersey in Pollitt v. DRS Towing, LLC, 2011 WL 1466378 at *7 (D.N.J. 2011):

The New Jersey Supreme Court has stated that ‘unconscionability’ is an
amorphous concept obviously designed to establish a broad business
ethic.

202. As amatter of law, the CFA does not require a plaintiff to request a refund from
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the seller, and the availability of a refund does not negate a CFA claim. Rather the New Jersey
Supreme Court has specifically rejected both arguments, holding that to allow the availability of a
refund to nullify a CFA claim would create a “safe harbor” for misconduct by merchants and would
be contrary to the purpose of the CFA. See Bosland v. Warnock Dodge. Inc., 197 N.J. 543, 561
(2009):

Plainly, if we require plaintiffs, as a precondition to filing a complaint

under the CFA, to first demand a refund, we will create a safe harbor
for an offending merchant. A merchant could rely on the pre-suit refund

demand requirement, boldly imposing inflated charges at no risk, and
planning to refund the overcharges only when asked. Such an analysis of
the CFA would limit relief by making it available only to those
consumers who are alert enough to ask for a refund, while allowing the
offending merchant to reap a windfall....Because reading a pre-suit
demand for refund requirement into the CFA would thwart those
salutary purposes, we will not endorse it.

203. Moreover, the fact that a merchant has offered a refund after suit has been filed

does not negate a CFA claim. Furst v. Einstein Moomjy. Inc., 182 N.J. 1, 6 (2004).

204. By the acts alleged herein, Defendants have committed multiple acts that
constitute unconscionable commercial practices under N.J.S.A. § 56:8-2 of the NJCFA.

Specifically, Defendants:

a. Setand advertised an arbitrary “valued at” price for every item on their website,
and an identical arbitrary ticketed price for every item in their retail stores,
which prices were represented to be the items’ “original” or “regular” prices
despite the fact that no item was ever sold or offered for sale at that price;

b. Continuously held site- and store-wide “sales” that purported to offer items for
sale at a specified percentage discount or amount off their “valued at” and
ticketed prices, when the “discounted” sale prices did not actually represent the
advertised savings since the items were never offered for sale at the “valued at”
and ticketed prices;

c. Represented that the sale prices were available only for a limited time, when
each sale was immediately followed by another, similar sale offering the same
items at same or substantially similar prices;

d. Represented that items were on sale and offered at discounted prices when in
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fact the items were being offered for sale at their everyday, regular prices (or at
prices that were higher than their everyday, regular prices); and

e. Charged their customers the full, regular price for the items sold rather than the
advertised sale or discounted price.

205. In addition, Defendants made written affirmative misrepresentations of fact in the
sale of goods, which is an unlawful practice under the plain language of N.J.S.A.§ 56:8-2.

206. Specifically, Defendants’ website and in-store placards advertised that Plaintiff was
purchasing items at a specific percentage discount (e.g., “60%™) off their “valued at” and ticketed
prices, and that the discounted prices were valid only for a limited time.

207. As indicated previously, neither of these statements of fact were true. The items
were not discounted to the extent claimed by Defendants, as they were never sold at their “valued
at” and ticketed prices. Rather, the items were being sold to Plaintiff at a price equal to (or much
closer or even higher than) the everyday price at which Defendants regularly sold those items.
Moreover, the purportedly discounted prices did not end as advertised by Defendants, but rather
continued indefinitely.

208. In addition, Defendants engaged in knowing, material omissions of fact that

constitute unlawful practices under the plain language of N.J.S.A, § 56:8-2.

209. Defendants were aware that, without some explanation of the phrase “valued at,”
consumers would naturally assume that the “valued at” prices set forth on their website were real
prices at which Defendants had actually sold the items at some point in time.

210. Similarly, Defendants were aware that, without additional explanation, consumers
would assume that the ticketed prices set forth on items’ in-store price tags were real prices at
which Defendants had actually sold the items at some point in time.

211. Despite this, Defendants failed to advise Plaintiff and the New Jersey Subclass that

the “valued at” and ticketed prices were not prices at which Defendants had ever sold the items in
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question.

212. Nor did Defendants advise Plaintiff and the New Jersey Subclass that the items
offered for sale on their website and in their retail stores were not actually sold at the advertised
discounts, and in many instances were not discounted at all, but rather were being sold by
Defendants at or close to their everyday, regular prices.

213. Moreover, because Defendant’s conduct described herein is a violation of 16 C.F.R.
§ 233.1, such conduct constitutes a per s¢ violation of the CFA, N.J.S.A. § 56:8-1, et seq.

214. Furthermore, Defendants’ practices, as alleged in greater detail herein, violate
several New Jersey regulations promulgated under the NJCFA. Under well-established law, such
regulatory violations constitute per se violations of the NJCFA.

215. Specifically, the conduct of Defendants, as described herein, violates N.J.A.C. §
13:45A-9.6(a), which states: “An advertiser shall not use a fictitious former price. Use of a
fictitious former price will be deemed to be a violation of the Consumer Fraud Act.”

216. In addition, Defendants’ use of “valued at” and ticketed prices is a deceptive
representation in violation of NJ.A.C. § 13:45A-9.6(b)(1). This regulation requires that
Defendants be able to substantiate that there were “a substantial number of sales of the
advertised merchandise, or comparable merchandise of like grade or quality made within
the advertiser’s trade area in the regular course of business at any time within the most
recent 60 days...”

217. Defendants cannot do this. As alleged herein, Defendants’ “valued at™ and ticketed
prices were and are completely arbitrary statements of fictitious prices invented by Defendants,
designed to induce customers into erroneously believing they were buying discounted merchandise

at prices significantly less than what the items were objectively worth and/or being sold for.

39



Case 1:17-cv-04287-UA Document 3 Filed 06/08/17 Page 40 of 52

Defendants® “valued at” and ticketed prices were not based on any actual prices at which
comparable merchandise was actually sold in New Jersey in the regular course of business by
anyone within the last 60 days, as required by N.J.A.C. § 13:45A-9.6(b)(1).

218. Likewise, Defendants’ use of “valued at” and ticketed prices is a deceptive
representation in violation of N.J.A.C. § 13:45A-9.6(b)(2). This regulation requires that
Defendants substantiate “That the advertised merchandise, or comparable merchandise of
like grade or quality, was actively and openly offered for sale at that price within the
advertiser's trade area in the regular course of business during at least 28 days of the most
recent 90 days before or after the effective date of the advertisement...”

219. Again, Defendants cannot do this. Defendants’ “valued at” and ticketed prices were
not based on any actual price at which comparable merchandise was actually sold in New Jersey
in the regular course of business by anyone within 28 of the last 90 days, as required by N.J.A.C.
§ 13:45A-9.6(b)(2).

220. Indeed, Defendants® practices violate the illustrations of prohibited practices listed
in N.JA.C. § 13:45A-9.6, which specifically states it is a violation of this regulation for an
advertiser to use terms such as “retail value” for a product, when the purported “retail value”
price listed is not based on the prevailing, representative price actually being charged in the area
where the consumer is shopping. See N.J.A.C. § 13:45A-9.6, noting “the advertisement of
‘Retail Value $ 15.00° would suggest a prevailing, and not merely an isolated and
unrepresentative price in the area in which they shop.”

221. In addition, Defendants’ practices, as alleged herein, violate N.J.A.C. § 13:45A-
9.3, which requires that a sale advertisement state specifically and accurately the time period

during which the sale price is applicable. As indicated herein, Defendants advertised that their
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“sales” were available only for a limited time, e.g., “from March 17, 2016, 12:01am ET through
March 21, 2016, 11:59 pm ET.” Yet Defendants were fully aware when they made these
statements, that the purported expiration time and date listed on their advertisements were false.
For example, Defendants knew that the advertised discounts associated with the purported “UP
TO 60% OFF EVERYTHING” sale, during which Plaintiff purchased the Seaside Sandals, were
not ending at midnight on March 17, 2016, and the Seaside Sandals would continue to be offered
for sale by Defendants at the same or very similar price charged to Plaintiff for a substantial time
thereafter.

222, Finally, the “UP TO 60% OFF EVERYTHING” advertisement, which was
displayed on Defendants’ J. Crew Factory website when Plaintiff purchased the Seaside Sandals
on March 17, 20186, is a violation of N.J.A.C. § 13:45A-9.5(a)(1), which prohibits retailers from
advertising only the maximum percentage discount in connection with a sale, or to qualify such
advertisement as “up to” this maximum percentage discount, without also stating the minimum
percentage discount associated with the sale.

223. These uniform practices by Defendants constitute unlawful, sharp and
unconscionable commercial practices relating to the sale of goods in violation of the NJCFA,
N.J.S.A. § 56:8-1, et seq.

224. As alleged herein, Defendant has engaged in deceptive conduct which creates a
likelihood of confusion or misunderstanding.

225. As such, Defendants have acted with knowledge that its conduct was deceptive and
with intent that such conduct deceive purchasers.

226. Plaintiff and the class members reasonably and justifiably expected Defendants to

comply with applicable law, but Defendants failed to do so.
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227. Asadirect and proximate result of these unlawful actions by Defendants, Plaintiff
and the New Jersey Subclass have been injured and have suffered an ascertainable loss of money,
in that they failed to receive the full benefit of the bargain promised by Defendants.

228. That loss is measured, inter alia, by the loss of the specific percentage discount that
Defendants promised, but did not deliver, on each of Plaintiff’s and the New Jersey Subclass’s
purchases. In actuality, Plaintiff and the New Jersey Subclass received a much lesser discount —
or no discount at all — and the prices they paid for the items they purchased were the regular,
undiscounted prices normally charged by Defendants, or very close thereto.

229, The purported discounts offered by Defendants were illusory because their
purported existence was premised on Defendants’ misleading representations that Defendants
were offering these items for sale at a discounted price that was lower than the actual price at which
the items were regularly sold.

230. Under New Jersey law, the presumptive value of an item is its regular selling price.

231. By listing “valued at” prices on their website and in-store price tags, Defendants
promised bargains to Plaintiff and the class in which they would receive items that were in fact
worth the advertised “valued at” prices. However, Plaintiff and the class did not receive the benefit
of that promised bargain because the items were never sold at their “valued at” prices, and thus
were not actually worth the advertised “valued at” prices, but rather were worth less than those
prices. By receiving items worth less than their promised value, Plaintiff and the class were
deprived of the benefit of the promised bargain.

232. Plaintiff and the class also suffered an out of pocket loss of money in that they were

induced to pay money to purchase items based on Defendants’ deceptive and misleading marketing
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policies described herein. But for Defendants’ deceptive and misleading conduct, Plaintiff and the
class would not have purchased the items from Defendants.

233.  Thus, Plaintiff’s damages arising from her four purchases referenced herein may
be measured in three ways. First, because Plaintiff would not have purchased any of the four items
but for Defendants’ misrepresentation that they were on sale, Plaintiff should be entitled to a full
refund of what she paid for the items — $20.83 for the Chino Short, $35.50 for the Seaside Sandals,
$11.80 for the Paleontologist T-Shirt, and $13.00 for the Dino T-Shirt. Alternatively, Plaintiff
should receive the difference between her purchase price for each item and the amount she would
have paid had the promised discount been applied to each item’s regular price — $10.66 for the
Chino Short ($20.83 purchase price less $10.17, which is 40% off the actual regular price of
$16.95); $25.50 for the Seaside Sandals ($35.50 purchase price less $10.00, which is 60% off the
actual regular price of $24.99); $5.80 for the Paleontologist T-Shirt ($11.80 purchase price less
$6.00, which is 60% off the actual regular price of $14.99); and $7.00 for the Dino T-Shirt ($13.00
purchase price less $6.00, which is 60% off the regular price of $14.99). At the absolute minimum,
Plaintiff should receive a refund of the amounts she overpaid for the Chino Short ($2.28) and
Seaside Sandals ($10.51) — the difference between the price she paid and each item’s actual regular
price — as those items were not discounted at all when Plaintiff purchased them, as advertised by
Defendants, but rather were sold to Plaintiff at price higher than their everyday regular prices. The
actual damages of the class could be similarly calculated from Defendants’ records.

234. Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 56:8-19 of the NJCFA, Plaintiff seeks, inter alia, actual

damages, treble damages and injunctive relief for herself and the class.
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COUNT I
VIOLATION OF THE NEW JERSEY TRUTH IN CONSUMER CONTRACT,
WARRANTY AND NOTICE ACT, N.J.S.A. § 56:12-14, ¢t seq.
(On Behalf of the New Jersey Subclass)

235. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this
Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

236. Plaintiff brings this claim individually and on behalf of all other New Jersey
Subclass members who were customers of Defendants’ J. Crew Factory website and retail stores.

237. Plaintiff and the New Jersey Subclass are “consumers™ within the meaning of
N.J.S.A. §§ 56:12-15 and 16.

238. Defendants are “sellers” within the meaning of N.J.S.A. §§ 56:12-15 and 16.

239. The advertisements and representations on Defendants’ website and posted on in-
store placards, stating, e.g., that items are on “sale” and being discounted by certain percentages
or amounts, are both a consumer “notice” and “warranty” within the meaning of N.J.S.A. §§ 56:12-
15 and 16.

240. By the acts alleged herein, Defendants have violated N.J.S.A. § 56:12-16 because,
in the course of Defendants’ business, Defendants have offered written consumer notices and
warranties to Plaintiff and the New Jersey Subclass which contained provisions that violated their
clearly established legal rights under state law and federal regulations, within the meaning of
N.J.S.A. § 56:12-15.

241. Specifically, the clearly established rights of Plaintiff and the New Jersey Subclass
under state law include the right not to be subjected to unconscionable commercial practices,

omissions of material fact, and false written affirmative statements of fact in the sale of goods, as

described herein, which acts are prohibited by the NJCFA, N.J.S.A. § 56:8-2.
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242, Further, the clearly established rights of Plaintiff and the New Jersey Subclass
under federal law include the right not to be subjected to false advertising in violation of 16 C.F.R.
§ 233.1.

243. Moreover, the clearly established rights of Plaintiff and the New Jersey Subclass
include the right not to be subjected to advertising practices prohibited by N.J.A.C. § 13:45A-9.6,
NJ.AC. § 13:45A-9.3, and N.J.A.C. § 13:45A-9.5(a)(1).

244. Pursuant to N.J.S.A. § 56:12-17, Plaintiff seeks a statutory penalty of $100 for each
New Jersey Subclass member, as well as actual damages and attorneys’ fees and costs.

COUNT IV

BREACH OF CONTRACT
(On Behalf of the Nationwide Class and New Jersey Subclass)

245. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this
Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

246. Plaintiff and the class members entered into contracts with Defendants.

247. The contracts provided that Plaintiff and the class members would pay Defendants
for their products.

248. The contracts further provided that Defendants would provide Plaintiff and the class
members a specific discount on the price of their purchases. This specified discount was a specific
and material term of each contract.

249. Plaintiff and the class members paid Defendants for the products they purchased,
and satisfied all other conditions of the contracts.

250. Defendants breached the contracts with Plaintiff and the class members by failing
to comply with the material term of providing the promised discount, and instead charged

Plaintiff and the class members a higher, or full, price of the products they purchased.
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251. As adirect and proximate resuit of Defendants’ breach, Plaintiff and the class
members have been injured and have suffered actual damages in an amount to be established at
trial.

COUNT V
BREACH OF CONTRACT UNDER THE IMPLIED COVENANT
OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING
(On Behalf of the Nationwide Class and New Jersey Subclass)

252. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this
Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

253. There was no written contract between Defendants and their customers, including
Plaintiff and the class members.

254. Rather, by operation of the law of each state, there existed an implied contract for
the sale of goods between each customer who purchased items from Defendants’ J. Crew Factory
website and retail stores.

255. By operation of the law of each state, there also existed an implied duty of good
faith and fair dealing in each such contract.

256. By the acts alleged herein, Defendants have violated that duty of good faith and fair
dealing, thereby breaching the implied contract between Defendant and each class member.

257. Specifically, it was a violation of the duty of good faith and fair dealing for
Defendants to represent that the items on their website were discounted by a specific percentage
or amount when in fact they were not discounted at all, or by a far lesser percentage, but instead
were offered for sale at their regular prices (or at a price very close thereto).

258. It was also a violation of the duty of good faith and fair dealing for Defendants to
charge Plaintiff and class members prices that were higher than promised by Defendants’

advertised percentage off discounts, and that were in many cases the regular prices for the items
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purchased by Plaintiff and the class.

259. Asadirect and proximate result of Defendants’ breach of the implied covenant of
good faith and fair dealing, Plaintiff and the class members have been injured and have suffered
actual damages in an amount to be established at trial.

COUNT VI

BREACH OF EXPRESS WARRANTY
(On Behalf of the Nationwide Class and New Jersey Subclass)

260. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this
Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

261. Plaintiff and the class members formed contracts with Defendants at the time they
purchased items from Defendants’ website and retail stores. The terms of such contracts included
the promises and affirmations of fact made by Defendants through their marketing campaigns, as
alleged herein, including, but not limited to, representing that the items for sale on Defendants’ J.
Crew Factory website and retail stores were being discounted.

262. This product advertising constitutes express warranties, became part of the basis of

the bargain, and is part of the contracts between Defendants and Plaintiff and the class members.

263. The affirmations of fact made by Defendants were made to induce Plaintiff and the

class members to purchase items from Defendants® website and retail stores.

264, Defendants intended that Plaintiff and the class members would rely on those

representations in making their purchases, and Plaintiff and the class members did so.

265. All conditions precedent to Defendants’ liability under these express warranties

have been fulfilled by Plaintiff and the class members in terms of paying for the goods at issue,
or have been waived. Defendants had actual and/or constructive notice of their own false

advertising, marketing, and sales practices but to date have taken no action to remedy their
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breaches of express warranty.

266. Defendants breached the terms of the express warranty because the items purchased
by Plaintiff and the class members did not conform to the description provided by Defendants —
that they were being sold at a specified discount. In fact, they were not.

267. As adirect and proximate result of Defendants’ breach of express warranty,
Plaintiff and the class members have been injured and have suffered actual damages in an amount
to be established at trial.

COUNT VI

UNJUST ENRICHMENT
(On Behalf of the Nationwide Class and New Jersey Subclass)

268. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this
Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

269. This claim is asserted in the alternative to a finding of breach of contract. This
claim asserts that it is unjust to allow Defendants to retain profits from their deceptive, misleading,
and unlawful conduct alleged herein.

270. Plaintiff and the class were charged by — and paid — Defendants for the items they
purchased from Defendants® website and retail stores. Consequently, Plaintiffs and the Class
have conferred substantial benefits on Defendants by purchasing the items, and Defendants have
knowingly and willingly accepted and enjoyed these benefits.

271. Defendants represented that these items were discounted by a certain percentage or
amount, with the specific intent that such representation would induce customers to purchase said
items.

272.  As detailed herein, the items purchased by Plaintiff and the class members were not

discounted to the extent claimed by Defendants, and in some cases were not discounted at all.
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273. Because the items were advertised as being discounted when they actually were
not, Defendants collected more money than they would have if the items were discounted as
promised.

274. As aresult of these complained-of actions by Defendants, Defendants received
benefits under circumstances where it would be unjust for them to retain those benefits.

275. Defendants have knowledge or an appreciation of the benefit conferred upon them
by Plaintiff and the class members.

276. Equity demands disgorgement of Defendants’ ill-gotten gains. Defendants will be
unjustly enriched unless Defendants are ordered to disgorge those profits for the benefit of
Plaintiff and the class members.

277. Plaintiff and the class members are entitled to restitution and/or disgorgement of all
profits, benefits, and other compensation obtained and retained by the Defendants from their
deceptive, misleading, and unlawful conduct described herein.

COUNT VIII

NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION
(On Behalf of the Nationwide Class and the New Jersey Subclass)

278. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this

Complaint as if fully set forth herein.
279. Defendants have negligently represented that the items offered for sale on their J.
Crew Factory website and in their J. Crew Factory retail stores are discounted by a specific

percentage, when in fact they are not.

280. This is a material fact that Defendants have misrepresented to the public, including

Plaintiff and the Class Members.
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281. Defendants know that the prices of the items offered for sale on their website and in
their retail stores — and specifically whether such prices are discounted or sale prices — are material
to the reasonable consumer, and Defendants intend for consumers to rely upon such misstatements
when choosing to purchase items from their website and retail stores.

282. Defendants knew or should have known that these misstatements or omissions
would materially affect Plaintiff’s and the class members® decisions to purchase items from
Defendants.

283. Plaintiff and other reasonable consumers, including the class members, reasonably
relied on Defendants’ representations set forth herein, and, in reliance thereon, purchased items
from Defendants’ website and retail stores.

284. The reliance by Plaintiff and the class members was reasonable and justified in that
Defendants appeared to be, and represented themselves to be, a reputable business.

285. Plaintiff and the class members would not have been willing to pay for the items
they purchased, or would not have paid what they paid for the items they purchased, if they knew
that such items were not in fact discounted by the advertised percentages from their everyday,
regular prices.

286. As adirect and proximate result of Defendants’ misrepresentations, Plaintiff and
the class members were induced to purchase items from Defendants’ website and retail stores, and
have suffered damages to be determined at trial, in that, among other things, they have been
deprived of the benefit of their bargain in that they bought items that were purported to be
discounted by a specified percentage, when in fact they were not.

287. Plaintiffs seek all available remedies, damages, and awards as a result of

Defendants’ negligent misrepresentations.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray that this case be certified and maintained as a class action
and for judgment to be entered in favor of Plaintiff and the class against Defendants as follows:

A. Enter an order certifying the proposed Class, designating Plaintiffs as the Class
representatives, and designating the undersigned as Class counsel;

B. Declare that Defendants are financially responsible for notifying all Class
members of their deceptive advertising, sales, and marketing practices alleged herein;

C. Declare that Defendants must disgorge, for the benefit of the Class, all or part of
the ill-gotten profits they received from their deceptive advertising, sales, and marketing
practices alleged herein, or order Defendants to make full restitution to Plaintiffs and the
members of the Class;

D. Find that Defendants’ conduct alleged herein be adjudged and decreed in violation
of the state laws cited above;

E. Grant economic and compensatory damages on behalf of Plaintiff and all
members of the Class, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law;

F. Grant punitive or exemplary damages as permitted by law;

G. Grant the requested injunctive and declaratory relief;

H. Award interest as permitted by law;

I. Grant reasonable attorneys’ fees and reimbursement all costs incurred in the
prosecution of this action; and

J.  Grant such other relief as this Court deems just and proper.
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DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY

Pursuant to Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. Plaintiff. on behalf of
himself and all others similarly situated. demands a trial by jury on all questions of fact raised by

the complaint.

Date:  June 6. 2017

DeNITTIS OSEFCHEN PRINCE, P.C.

By: {

Ross H. Schmierer. Fsq. - R§7215
5 Greentree Centre

525 Route 73 North, Suite 410
Marlton. NJ 08033

Tel.: {856) 797-9951

Fax: {836) 797-9G78

Attorneys for Plaintiff and
the Puiative Class
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STORES & ONLINE: 50% OFF EVERYTHING.* PRICES AS MARKED ONLINE, NO EXCLUSIONS
PLUS, SHOP QUR CHEEP DEALS WITH MORE THAN 50% OFF SELECT STYLES. DETAILS
MY ACCOUNT Register | SIGNIN | ™= | VISIT JCREW CLOSE

*Prices as marked at jerewfactory.com reflect

J, $5.00fal  giscount. In-store discount as advertised. Offer
valid in J.Crew Factory and J.Crew Mercantile
stores and at jcrewfactory.com from April 12,

2017, 12:01am ET through April 16, 2017,
THE ONLINE HOME OF | .CREW MERCANTILE 11:59pm ET. Offer not valid in J.Crew stores, at

jerew.com or on phone orders. Offer cannot be
WOMEN MEN GIRLS BOYS PETITE CREW CLEARANCE SIGN ME UP Sppliediic previcUs pilfchiises.or.the purchass

of gift cards and cannot be redeemed for cash

or combined with any other offer. In-store
discount automatically taken at the register.
Offer valid in the U.S. and Canada only. Terms
are subject to change.

NO
EXCLUSIONS?!
This sale’s
hoppin’.

WANT SALES LIKE THIS SENT STRAIGHT TO YOUR INBOX?
YEP, SIGN ME UP >

DON'T MISS OUR CHEEP DEALS—WE'RE TALKIN’

e MORETHAN 50% OFF

MEANING PRICES LIKE THESE...

STARTING A1 JUST

WOMEN'S MEN'S
STUDIO $9 95 PIQUE $16 95
[ ] [ |
T-SHIRTS POLOS
e °

SHOP MORE CHEEP DEALS FOR WOMEN, MEN, GIRLS & BOYS >

https:/ffactory jerew.com/ 12
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WOMEN: MEN CREWCUTS
OUTFIT OBSESSIONS WHAT TO WEAR THEIR FAVORITE OQUTFITS

shor now | o5 now |

YOUR ORDERS LET US HELP YOU OUR STORES POPULAR SEARCHES SIGN UP FOR
FACTORY EMAILS

CUR BRANDS , JOIN UB

THE J.CREW CREDIT

CARD

JCREW

https:/ffactory.jcrew.com/
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PLUS, SHOP OUR CHEEP DEALS, WITH MORE THAN 50% OFF SELECT STYLES. DETAILS

MY ACCOUNT (JACCOUNT/HOME.JSP)
Register (https://factory.jcrew.com/account/new_account.jsp?

T%3C%3Eprd_id=845524441861901&FOLDER%3C%3Efolder_id=2534374302083756&bmUID=1J611Ak} | SIGN IN

NRRE GAEEDU AN FA ST Y& RENcBRM /MEMS s 842 T 1Y ebBPbER%3C%IEFOLDER_ID=2534374302083756&BMUID=LJ611AJ)

3 . 5.00 flat-rate shippi
| GURLS (HERS:URARTORNARREW.COMIG]R $5.00 fltrao shiping 10 siep o e ol 108
BOYS (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/BOY g mmmgwmmﬂ PRODUCT%3C%3EPRD ID=8
PETITE (HTTPS://IFACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOMENS CIAL IPETITE.JSP N
{ THE ONLINE HsME O?J%REW ERE ILE ) |
CREW CLEARANCE (HTTPS://IFACTORY.JCREW.COM/SALE.JSP)
SHOPPING BAG (HTTPS://FAC

SIGN ME UP (HTTPS://IFACTORY.JCREW.COM/AST/FACTORY/FACTORYNAVIGATION/FACTORYFIRST.JSP) H
PRODUCT%SC?’EQ&?D_ID=B

WHAT'S NEW
new arrivals
SEASIDE SANDALS

(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo

mens_clothing/new_arrivals.js item e8846
p)

* ki
best bet: shorts read reviews | write a review
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens_clothing/best_bet_for_w 3
omen.jsp) valued at $598.50 yowprxu $24.99
outfit obsessions COLOR: talll 1d
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo : metallic gol

$24.99

mens_clething/outfit_obsessio
ns.jsp) D
dresses under $50

(hitps://factory.jcrew.com/wo e 7
mens_clothing/sale_for_wome SIZE: size charts

n.jsp)

5
medium

there's a top for that
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens_clothing/featured_sale_f
or_women.jsp)

QUANTITY: |1 ¥

cheep deals (styles at more
than 50% off)
(hitps://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens_clothing/womens _featur
ed.jsp)

FINAL SALE: Metallic Gold, size 5 medium is
available but cannot be exchanged or returned.
Valid while supplies last. All sales final,

full size

CLOTHING ADD TO BAG

PRODUCT DETAILS
sweaters

(hitps://factory.jcrew.com/wo « Polyurethane upper.
mens-clothing/sweaters jsp) & MEHEHAHEEEIE ADD TO WISHLIST

shirts & tops « Import.
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo SHARE THIS ITEM
mens-clothing/shirts_tops.jsp)

knits & t-shirts
{https://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens-clothing/knits _tees jsp)

jackets & blazers
(https://factory.jecrew.com/wo
mens-

clothing/blazers_outerwear.js CUSTOMERS ALSO LOVE
p)

pants
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens-clothing/pants.jsp)

denim
(https://{actory.jcrew.com/wo
mens-clothing/denim_sm.jsp)

dresses
(https://factary.jcrew.com/wo
mens-clothing/dresses.jsp)

skirts

{(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo

mens-clothing/skirts.jsp) QUICK SHOP QUICK SHOP QUICK SHOP QUICK SHOP

5:"”"‘_ ; . ; Morgan leather peep-toe Leather mule slides Boardwalk sandals Crisscross ankle-strap

{https:/ffactary.jcrew:comiwo flats (/womens- {/womens- (lwomens- sandals (/womens-

mens-clothing/shorts.jsp) clothing/shoes/sandals/PRDO VR B 05 Eabkfaz49P R DO VR ~-G26681g 287k g p andals/PRD OV R BB 55 Bi/S jeppls/PROOVR~-G1821/G 1821 js
= valued at $89.50 valued at $69.50 valued at $49.50 valued at $59.50

suiting your price $44.50 your price $34.50 your price $19.95 your price $29.50

(hitps://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens-clothing/suiting.jsp)

swim & cover-ups
(https://factory.jerew.com/wo
mens-
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pajamas
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens-clothing/loungewear.jsp)

activewear
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens-clothing/activewear.jsp)

SHOES & ACCESSORIES

shoes
(https://factory.jerew.com/wo
mens-clothing/shoes .jsp)

sandals

(https://factory.jcrew.com/womens-

clothing/shoes/sandals.jsp)

peep toe
(https://factory.jerew.com/w
omens-
clothing/shoes/peeptoe_flats
.jsp)

ballet flats
(https://factory.jcrew.com/w
omens-
clothing/shoes/balletflats.jsp
)

flats
(https://factory.jecrew.com/w
amens-
clothing/shoes/flats.jsp)

heels
(hitps://factory.jerew.com/w
omens-
clothing/shoes/pumpsandhe
els.jsp)

wedges
(https://factory.jcrew.com/w
omens-
clothing/shoes/wedges . jsp)

flip-flops
(https://factory.jcrew.com/w
amens-
clothing/shoes/flip_flops.jsp)

jewelry
(hitps://factory.jerew.com/wo
mens-clothing/jewelry.jsp)

accessories
(https:/ffactory.jcrew.com/wo
mens-
clothing/bags_accessories.jsp
)

sunglasses
(hitps://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens-clothing/sunglasses.jsp)

bags
(hitps://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens-clothing/bags.jsp)

SPECIAL SI2ZES

pelite
(https:/ffactory.jcrew.com/wa
mens_special_sizes/petite.jsp
)

tall
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens_special_sizes/tall.jsp)

sizes 18-20
(https://factary.jcrew.com/wo
mens_special_sizes/extended
sizes.jsp)

sizes 5 & 11 shoes
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens_special_sizes/extended
_size_shoes.jsp)

S0P & GUIDES

dress-up shop
(hitps://factory.jerew.com/wo
mens_shops/dress_up_shop.j
sp)

OVERALL RATING: s 3 44/5

Based on 19 Reviews, 83% of customers recommend this item.

OVERALL FIT : |
uns true to runs
small size large

MOST HELPFUL

MOST RECENT HIGHEST RATED

WRITE A REVIEW

WIDTH : |
runs true to runs
small size large

LOWEST RATED

v

*okkok ok

Nice summer sandal
March 4, 2016
* | like this sandal. It goes well with jeans or your
summer shorts. It fits true to size and the leather is a
nice rich brown color. It's also very ..." show more

Sammie
https:/factory.jcrew.com/fiatpages/bv_user profile.jsp?

user=7319690)
Tampa, FL, USA

was this review helpful? YES § NO 0

* ok ok k
A Good Sandal
April 5, 2016
“ These sandals are a good, casual sandal. They are
more shapeless than | imagined, but cute enough to
keep. | thought the straps would be a littie more

.." show more

AthensBB
https:/ffactory.jcrew.c latpages/bv_user ile.jsp?

users5177775)
Athens, GA, USA

was this review heipful? YES 2 NO 0O

Fook ok kok

Cute and comfortable
June 29, 2016
"1 have wide feet and these fit so comfortably. I've
walked miles and miles in these and have never had
any rubbing or seen any damage. Buy these!”

Molly
https:/Hactory.jcrew.com/flatpages/bv_user profile.jsp?

user=9466146
Chicago

was this review helpful? YES 1 NO 0

*

Don't stay on

March 30, 2016
“ These are great looking sandals, but they don't stay
on your feet when you walk. The straps are too far
forward and your foot slips out. A smaller

KD§15
https:/ffactory.jcrew.com/flatpages/bv_user profile.jsp?

user=8341427

was this review helpful? YES & NO 1

&k koK

Cute summer sandals
March 9, 2016
“Definitely not a walking shoe (the sole is very thin),
but the fit is nice and the price is right for the style!”

BRBS585
https:/ffactory.jcrew.com/flatpages/bv_user profile.isp?

user=4116164)
Boston, MA, USA

was this review helpful? YES 2 NO 0
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{https://factory
mens_shops/thegetawayshopf
orwomen.jsp)

tee guide
(https://factory.jerew.com/wa
mens_shops/theteeguide_sm.j
sp)

denim fit guide
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens-clothing/denim_sm._jsp}

pant fit guide
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens_shops/pant_guide_sm.j
sp)

wear-to-work shop
(https://factory.jcrew.com/wo
mens_shops/weartowork.jsp)

online exclusives
(htips://factory.jcrew.comiwa
mens_shops/online_exclusive

s.jsp)

YOUR ORDERS LET US HELP YOU OUR STORES POPULAR SEARCHES SIGN UP FOR

ORDER STATUS CONTACT US STORE LOCATOR CHAMBRAY SHIRTS FACTORY EMAILS

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELF SRIFER TERVTUSRER.C OM/ HELFY 6 ONPO D RIS JLFEM TS WE BE/ETROR ECEDWATORMIMEZIE NS CL OTHING/CHAMERAYSHIDTS 10Dy

SHIPPING & HANDLING OUR SIZE CHARTS CASUAL DRESSES your emall JAN-UE

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/MBORIE W PING_HANDLING.JsPOUR BRANDS (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOMENS STEALS AND STYLE IDEAS,

RETURNS & EXCHANGES (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/MRIFEWE OUT_JCREWFACIOIHIBE)DRE SSES/CASUALDRESSESWERED TO YOUR INBOX WEEKLY.

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/ABDMBE MURNS_ BECHBNGES . JS@ITTPS ://WWW.JCREW.COMINDENQBPS

INTERNATIONAL ORDERS (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/BROBODIBICFOOTER) {HTTPS://FACTORY. JCREW.COM/WOMENS-

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/BEREEREE RNATIONAL_ORDERS MABEWELL CLOTHING/SHORTS/soLiD.JsP) LET'S HANG
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW. COM/HELIH S ARPERSMIFEWE FIQCO®/ INDEX . JSP?

THE J.CREW CREDIT THE J.CREW GIFT CARD SRCCODE=FCFOOTER) (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/M ]

CARD (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/UEIREWI MEABRUINSP) CLOTHING/TEES_POLOS_FLEECE/FTES: W.FACEBOOK.COM/JCREWFAC"

. (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREGABDLIAEEP /MERCANTILE JSP)

L Gel $25 for every $500 you spend™" J.CREW FACTORY (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WQM JHPLUS:G00GLE COMUDIBI 104680

(HTTPS://IFACTORY.JCREQLOSMMG/SWEATERS/CARDIGANS.JSP)
{HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/CREDIT_CARD.JSP) WORK DRESSES

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOMENS-
CLOTHING/DRESSES/WEAR_TO_WORKDRESSES.JSP)
MEN'S SUITS

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/MENS-
CLOTHING/SUITING/SUITING.JSP)

APPLY TODAY & GET 15% OFF*
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/CREDIT_CARD.JSP)
MANAGE YOUR CARD
(HTTPS://ONLINEACCESS.MYCREDITCARD.CC/JCREW)

BVl (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW, COM/INDEX.JSP) CONTACT US ( HTTPS://FACTORY. JCREW.COM/HELP/CONTACT_US.JSP ) |

TERMS OF USE ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/TERMS_OF_USE.JSP ) | PRIVACY POLICY ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/PRIVACY_POLICY.JSP ) |

CA TRANSPARENCY ACT ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/FLATPAGES/SOCIAL_RES_APRIL4.JSP ) | SITE MAP ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/SITEMAP.JSP } |
© 2017 J.CREW

=

SHIP TO: UNITED STATES | CHANGE
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MY ACCOUNT (JACCOUNT/HOME.JSP)

Register (htips://factory.jcrew.com/account/new_account.jsp?
EC%SEprd_id=B45524441818359&FDLDER%3C%35'0[6&r7id=25343?430208527D&bmuID=|J61Jm8] | SIGN IN

‘ 'RV PR AT AT RRONAG BIEWHE PMIWOMENS-CLOTHING . JSP)

e IAER DU A PAGRG PR RENEPRM M EN S5 S44R THANGR bR bER % 3C %3EFOLDER _ID=25343743020862708BMUID=LJ61JM7)

- 5.00 flat-rate shipping & free shippi ders of $1
| GhBLS ﬁ"'\7|§ﬁs.r.€§é\ﬁ7°ﬁ%\.+ﬁfﬁ‘fw-c°"”GJ'}W $ e shipping & free shigping on orders of $100
BOYE (HTTRS:[/FACTORY.JCREW.COMIEDY ) {https://ffactory.jcrew.com/) PRODUCT%3C%3EPRD_ID=8

PETITE (HTTPS://IFACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOMENS SPECIAL_SIZES/PETITE.JSP
{ THE ONLINE HOME O?].CCREW'MEEEANTILE ! |
CREW CLEARANCE (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/SALE.JSP)
SHOPPING BAG (HTTPS://FAC

SIGN ME UP (HTTPS://FACTORY.,JCREW.COM/AST/FACTORY/FACTORYNAVIGATION/FACTORYFIRST.JSP) %Eﬁaco"
PRODUCT%3C _ID=8

{RETURN TO SEARCH
3" CHINO SHORT

HTTPS://FA R :
PRODUCT%3C%3EPRD ID=2554374302086270&BMUID=1161)1 Z&NBRD=F&NL

* & k&
read reviews | write a review

valued at $34.50  your price $14.95

TCHEEP DEAL:
COLOR: black
$14.95
|
EEET"EEEN
SIZE: size charts
00 1] 2 4
6 8 10 12
14
- QUANTITY: 1 ¥
full size
ADD TO BAG
PRODUCT DETAILS
. Cotton. ADD TO WISHLIST
+ Sits just above hip.
+ 3"inseam. SHARE THIS ITEM
s« Zip fiy.

« Slant pockets, back welt pockets.
« Machine wash.

« Import.

CUSTOMERS ALSO LOVE

QUICK SHOP QUICK SHOP QUICK SHOP QUICK SHOP
3" white chino short 4" chino short {/womens- 3" oxford Short 3" chambray short
(/womens- clothing/shorts/solid/PRDOVR~§046WE0469 jsp) (/womens-
clothing/shoris/solid/PRD O VR ~Ea ki BA 3460) clothing/shorts/solid/PRDOVR ~Addib i gas0stisisplid/PRDOVR~BIA55/BI355 jsp)
valued at $34.50 your price $17.00 valued at $39.50 valued at $39.50

your price $14.95 your price $19.50 your price $19.50
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YOUR ORDERS

LET US HELP YOU

OVERALL RATING: W # &  38/5

WRITE A REVIEW

Based on 105 Reviews, 75% of customers recommend this item.

OVERALL FIT : i
runs true fo runs
small size large

MOST HELPFUL MOST RECENT
v
ok koA
Different fit than J. Crew chinos

July 12, 2015

“I've ordered two pairs of chinos from J.Crew and two
from J.Crew Factory and the Faclory ones were
definitely different. | would go up a size in the

..."” show more

LauraA
:/ffactory.jcrew.com/flatpages/bv_user profile.jsp?

user=17067125)

Houston, TX, USA

was this review heipful? YES 24 NO 0

* &

Chino see through shorts
April 24, 2015
“ | ordered the 3" chinos in both black and white. The
black ones fit me great and look very nice. | love
them! Unfortunately, the white ones, however,

..." show more

Kate
https:/actory.jcrew.com/flatpages/bv_user profile.jsp?
user=16621841)

Washington, D.C.

was this review helpfui? YES 28 NO 3

*

Not the same as others
August 7, 2015
“ I bought these with the idea that | was getting the
best shorts that | have wom ever. | have 4 or five
others that | got over the years and that |

"

Annie
https:/ffactory.jcrew.com/flatpages/bv_user_profile.jsp?

user=8283293)
USA

was this review helpful? YES 11 NO 0

HIGHEST RATED

LOWEST RATED

ok ko
Summer Staple
May 28, 2015
* These shorts are a staple in my summer wardrobe.
The material is very nice and actually looks better as
It is broken in over time. However, this ..." show more

lamanda09

https:/ifactory.jcrew.com/fiat| /bv user profile.jsp?

user=15518121)

Pennsylvania, USA

was this review helpful? YES 22 NG 0

*k

White is too see through
April 23, 2015
“The shorts fit very well, but the white is way to see
through to wear. I'd recommend trying a darker color
that won't show all.”

Becky

https:/ifactory.jcrew.com/flatpages/bv user profile.jsp?

user=16747443)

was this review heipful? YES 19 NO 2

OUR STORES POPULAR SEARCHES
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SHIPPING & HANDLING OUR SIZE CHARTS CASUAL DRESSES
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/RBORIE MIFPP ING_HANDLING.JSPIOUR BRANDS (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WC M@K $mail JOIN US
RETuRgs & EXCHANGES (HTTPS:.'.'FACTORY.JCREW.COMIUE}FEHMOUT_JCREWFAGJ{GR‘\HJHG}DRES5ES.'CASUALDRESDSEEASI..éf%)TEALS KBS TYLEDERS:
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/REDMBERURMNE HESCHANGES.JSBITTPS //WWW.JCREW. CORMINDENQBPS
INTERNATIONAL ORDERS (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW,COM/BROBMODEHCFOOTER) (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COMWONENSERED TO YOUR INBOX WEEKLY.
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/BEREEREE RNATIONAL_ORDERS MABEWELL CLOTHING/SHORTS/SOLID.JSP)

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELRY 6 ARPRASMIEIDWE AQCOM/ INDEX . JSP? LET'S HANG
THE J.CREW CREDIT  THE J.CREW GIFT CARD SRCCODE=FCFOOTER) (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/M
CARD {(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HEIFEW MERRDINGF) CLOTHING/TEES_POLOS_FLEECE/

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREGABOMGABSP /MERCANTILE.JSP)  (HTTPS://WWW.FACEBOOK.COM/JCREWFAC

Get $25 for every $500 you spend** J.CREW FACTORY (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOME

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREMLOOMING/SWEATERS/CARDIGANS JSF e PLUS GOGELE Beinaaia
(HTTPS:/IFACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/CREDIT_CARD.JSP) WORK DRESSES ( : i -COM/U/o/BI 0
APPLY TODAY & GET 15% OFF* (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOMENS-

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/CREDIT_CARD.JSP) CLOTHING/DRESSES/WEAR_TO_WORKDRESSES.JSP)
MANAGE YOUR CARD MEN'S SUITS
(HTTPS://ONLINEACCESS.MYCREDITCARD.CC/JCREW) (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/MENS-

CLOTHING/SUITING/SUITING.JSP)

SN (HTTPS://FACTORY,JCREW. COM/INDEX. JSP) CONTACT US ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/CONTACT_US.JSP ) |

TERMS OF USE ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/TERMS_OF_USE.JSP ) | PRIVACY POLICY ( HTTPS://FACTORY. JCREW.COM/HELP/PRIVACY_POLICY.JSP ) |

CA TRANSPARENCY ACT ( HTTPS.//FACTORY.JCREW.COM/FLATPAGES/SOCIAL_RES_APRIL4.JSP ) | SITE MAP ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/SITEMAP.JSP ) |
© 2017 J.CREW

SHIP TO: UNITED STATES | CHANGE
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PLUS, SHOP OUR CHEEP DEALS, WITH MORE THAN 50% OFF SELECT STYLES

MY ACCOUNT (JACCOUNT/HOME.JSP)

Register (https://factory.jcrew.com/account/new_account.jsp?

PRODUCT%3C%3Eprd_id=8455244418724564FOLDER%3C %3Efolder_id=2534374302076412&bmUID=1J61L1D) | SIGN IN

(HTYRMERC tHAT PSR AR £ B HIBRANAG BIEWHE FMIWOMENS-CLOTHING . JSP)

MOMR'EJWAE‘?:%GMFE&;&J‘{:fﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂ%%s?&?ﬁ#!ﬂﬁﬂben%30memwsn ID=2534374302076412&BMUID=LJ61L1C)
BLS (MBI ERAGTORUWGAREW-cOMIGTRES R IR 35.00 flatrate shipping . e SURP N9 PP LR L1901

TPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/BOY (https://factory jcrew.com/) PRODUGT%3C%3EPRD_ID=8

ITE (HTTPS://IFACTORY. JCREW CI?LIIGE‘?I 'ESOFT %|EAVEF.1?éEEi’NPTEIIPE'JSP) I

CREW CLEARANCE (HTTPS.HFACTORY.JCREW.COM!’SALE.JSP)
SHOPPING BAG (HTTPS://FAC
SIGN ME UP (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/AST/FACTORY/FACTORYNAVIGATION/FACTORYFIRST.JSP) §§ H
PRODUCT%3C% eﬁ:ﬁ)_lﬂms

WHAT'S NEW

new arrivals

(https:/Hactory.jcrew.com/boy BOYS' LONG-SLEEVE DINO
STORYBOOK T-SHIRT

s_clothing/new_arrivals.jsp)
item 9526

ko
read reviews | write a review

his favorite outfits
(https://factory.jerew.com/boy
s_clothing/his_favorite_outfits
Jsp)

cheep deals (styles at more valued at $32.80  your price $14.99

than 50% off)
(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy

s_clothing/boys_featured.jsp) COLOR: bright grotto

$14.99
CLOTHING El
knits & t-shirts
(hitps://factory.jerew.com/boy SIZE size charts
§-
clothing/knits_tees_polos.jsp) 2 10 12 14
16

storybook t-shirts
{https://factory.jcrew.com/boys-
clothing/knits_tees_polos/story

stripes & novelty QUANTITY: 1 ¥

(https:i/factory.jerew.com/bo

ys-
;:_'Ijolh;n'an'knllts,ifesJDIoSiso FINAL SALE: Bright Grotto is available but
id_stripe_tees.jsp) full size cannot be exchanged or returned. Valid while

garment-dyed supplies last. All sales final.
{https://factory.jerew.com/bo
ys-
clothing/knits_tees_polos/ga
rment_dyed.jsp)

PRODUCT DETAILS
ADD TO BAG

= Cotton.

= Long sleeves.

solid « Machine wash,

(https://factory.jcrew.com/bo Import. ADD TO WISHLIST
s-

:lolhingfknilsftees__poios.'so

lids.jsp) SHARE THIS ITEM

polos
(hitps://factory jcrew.com/bo
ys-
clothing/knits_tees_polos/po
los.jsp)

sweatshirts
https://factory.j .com/bo

o S e CUSTOMERS ALSO LOVE
clothing/knits _tees_polos/ho
odies_sweatshirts jsp)

shirts
(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s-clothing/shirts.jsp)

sweaters
(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s-clothing/sweaters.jsp)

coats, jackets & blazers
(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s-
clothing/blazers_outerwear.js

QUICK SHOP QUICK SHOP QUICK SHOP

P}

Boys' straight chino Boys' short-sleeve Boys' patterned silk tie QUICK SHOP
shorts {/boys_shops/dress_up_shop/PRixHéRed [y itk idp) (/boys_shops/dress_up_ shop.'PgDOV 97%99379“]5 p)
(https://factory jcrew.com/boy valued at $44.50 T-shirt valued at $19.50 oys' glow- l’m ar
s-clothing/shorts jsp) your price $22.00 (/boys_shops/thegetawayshoplorhayprisaiSE2ERDO VR~ 6243415;5%17 fipook T-shirt

valued at $18.50 .

pants your price $9.00 ch::Lh;:g;:(:xzt;_;zas_polos!siorybouk_leesiPRDOv
(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy your price $16.99

s-clothing/pants.jsp)
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(https://factor
§-
clothing/swim_rashguards.jsp)

thompson suits
(https://factory.jcrew.com/bay
s-clothing/suiting.jsp)

boxers
(https://factory.jerew.com/boy
s-clothing/sleep.jsp)

SHOES & ACCESSOR/ES

shoes & socks
(https://factory.jerew.com/boy
s-clothing/shoes_socks.jsp)

ties & accessories
(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s-clothing/accessories.jsp)

SHH0PS & GUIDES

non-baring basics under §$25
(https://factory.jerew.com/boy
s_shops/everyday_styles_for
_boys_sm.jsp)

dress-up shop
(hitps://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s_shops/dress_up_shop.jsp)

getaway shop
(https:/ffactory.jcrew.com/boy
s_shopsithegetawayshopforbo
ys.isp)

online exclusives
(https://factory.jerew.com/boy
s_shops/online_exclusives. jsp
)

YOUR ORDERS
ORDER STATUS

LET US HELP YOU
CONTACT US

OVERALL RATING: 7 7 7 ¥ 35/5
Based on 2 Reviews, 50% of customers recommend this item.

WRITE A REVIEW

OVERALL FIT : |

uns true to runs
small size large

MOST HELPFUL MOST RECENT HIGHEST RATED LOWEST RATED
v
ok ko ke * A&

NOT Glow in the Dark
December 12, 2016
“It's a cool design but it does not glow in the dark as
described. The dinosaur is a metallic color.”

Perfect boy shirt!
January 16, 2017
“1 bought this for my son and he loves it! The Dino is
shiny and really pops. He has requested more Dino

shirts!”
seattie80
Trinka h :iifactory.jcrew.comff es/by r file.jsp?
s /) 0| 5, ile.js: user=10366231)
user=16562359)

Melbourne, FL, USA

was this review helpful? YES 0 NO 0 was this review helpful? YES 0 NO 0

SIGN UP FOR
FACTORY EMAILS

POPULAR SEARCHES
CHAMBRAY SHIRTS

OUR STORES
STORE LOCATOR

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELF 6 RIFER TORATUSRER.C O M/ HELRT 8 ORI RAS JCSTEM TIPS WE B E/ETRR EC RDWATORIWINENE _ CLOTHING/CHAMERAYSHIDTS 16D)

SHIPPING & HANDLING

RETURNS & EXCHANGES

OUR SIZE CHARTS
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/MBCRIBMIPPING_HANDLING.JsPOUR BRANDS
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HRIFEINE OUT_JCREWFACIORWHIBEIDRE SSES/CASUALDRESHESVWERED TO YOUR INBOX WEEKLY.

your email JOIN US

CASUAL DRESSES
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COMWOMENS: STEALS AND STYLE IDEAS.

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/REOMBETURNE_BEESHANGE S JSRITTPS //WWW. JCREW.CORINDEXQBPS

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/BROBIODEFICFOOTER) (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOMENS-
LET'S HANG

INTERNATIONAL ORDERS

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/BEREAREE RNATIONAL_ORDERS MABEWELL
(HTTPS://[FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELF € ARBRRSMIFEWE PLOCOB/ INDEX . JSP?
THE J.CREW GIFT CARD
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/YEIFE &I MEFARDTUSP) CLOTHING/TEES_POLOS_FLEECE/HITES:

THE J.CREW CREDIT
CARD

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/CREDIT_CARD.JSF)

APPLY TODAY & GET 15% OFF"

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/CREDIT_CARD.JSP)

MANAGE YOUR CARD

(HTTPS://ONLINEACCESS.MYCREDITCARD.CC/JCREW)

Get $25 for every $500 you spend**

UN@YNEAN (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/INDEX.JSP)
TERMS OF USE ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/TERMS_OF _USE.JSP ) | PRIVACY POLICY ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/PRIVACY_POLICY.JSP ) |

CLOTHING/SHORTS/SOLID.JSP)

SRCCODE=FCFOOTER) (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/ME|
W.FACEBOOK,.COM/JCREWFAC"
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREQABDLGABEP /MERCANTILE .JSP)
J.CREW FACTORY (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/W ME
(HTTPS:/IFACTORY.JCREQL OONING/SWEATERS/CARDIGANS JSP)
WORK DRESSES
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOMENS-
CLOTHING/DRESSES/WEAR_TO_WORKDRESSES.JSP)
MEN'S SUITS
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/MENS-
CLOTHING/SUITING/SUITING.JSP)

JIPLUS.GOOGLE.COMIU/O/B/104690

CONTACT US ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/CONTACT_US.JSP ) |

CA TRANSPARENCY ACT ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/FLATPAGES/SOCIAL_RES_APRIL4.JSP ) | SITE MAP ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/SITEMAP.JSP ) |

© 2017 J.CREW

SHIP TO: UNITED STATES | CHANGE
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PLUS, SHOP OUR CHEEP DEALS, WITH MORE THAN 50% OFF SELECT STYLES.

MY ACCOUNT (/ACCOUNT/HOME.JSP)

Register (https://factory.jcrew.com/account/new_account.jsp?

PRODUCT%3C%3Eprd_id=8455244418724634FOLDER%3C%3E folder_id=2534374302076412&bmUID=1J61M3L) | SIGN IN

(HTYRMEAL tHAT PE AR A B THIRRINAG BIEWHE OM/WOMENS-CLOTHING.JSP)

MOMEAN DINAELH (A FASTUC Y RENERRM /M EM T 5842 T MR 4B bER % 3C %3EFOLDER _ID=26343743020764128BMUID=LJ61M3IK)
BLS (HTERSERARTORKmAREW.COMIGIREE R UM Guittp $5.00 flt-rate shipping & free spiepng on Ldss oL §100¢

YTPS:/IFACTORY.JCREW.COM/BOY

it

https:/ffactory jerew.com/) PRODUCT%3C%3EPRD_ID=8

TE (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOMENS SPECIAL _SIZES/PETITE.JSP
{ THE ONLINE H M'E Cle.CREW"MEEEANTILE 5¥) |

CREW CLEARANCE (HTTPS://IFACTORY.JCREW.COM/SALE.JSP)
SIGN ME UP (HTTPS://IFACTORY.JCREW.COM/AST/FACTORY/FACTORYNAVIGATION/FACTORYFIRST.JSP)

SHOPPING BAG (HTTPS://FAC

prooucTxsc 3B i0-0

WHAT'S NEW

new arrivals
(hitps://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s_clothing/new_arrivals.jsp)

BOYS' LONG-SLEEVE GLOW-IN-THE-
DARK PALEONTOLOGIST STORYBOOK
; ; T-SHIRT

his favorite outfits y

(https //factory.jcrew.com/boy item f9528
s_clothing/his_favorite_outfits

-sp)

Be the first to wrile a review
cheep deals (styles at more
than 50% off)
{https://factory.jerew.com/boy
s_clothing/boys_featured.jsp)

valued at $20.50 your price $14.99

COLOR: faded indigo

cLoTHING $14.99

knits & t-shirts H

(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy

-

clothing/knits _tees_polos.jsp) SIZE: size charts
14 16

storybook t-shirts
(https:/ifactory.jerew.com/boys-
clothing/knits_tees_polos/story

A ol v
stripes & novelty QUANTITY: 1
(https://factory.jcrew.com/bo
ys-

clothing/knits _tees_polos/so FINAL SALE: Faded Indigo is available but

cannot be exchanged or returned. Valid while

lid_stripe_tees.jsp) 5
full size supplies last. All sales final.
garment-dyed
(https:/ifactory.jcrew.com/bo
ys- PRODUCT DETAILS
ADD TO BAG

clothing/knits _tees_polos/ga
rment_dyed.jsp) « Cotton.

+ Long sleeves.
solid
(https://factory.jcrew.com/bo
ys-
clothing/knits_tees_polos/so
lids.jsp)

« Machine wash.

ADD TO WISHLIST

- Import.

SHARE THIS ITEM

polas
(https://factory.jcrew.com/bo
ys-
clothing/knits_tees_polos/po
los.jsp)

sweatshirts
(https://factory.jcrew.com/bo
ys-

clothing/knits _tees_polos/ho
odies_swealshirts jsp)

CUSTOMERS ALSO LOVE

shirts
(hitps://factory.jerew.com/boy
s-clothing/shirts_jsp)

sweaters
{https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s-clothing/sweaters.jsp)

coats, jackets & blazers
(hitps:/Mfactory.jcrew.com/boy .
- , : BIRHEIP

s- . i |
clothing/blazers_cuterwear.js QUICK SHOP

p) QUICK SHOP QUICK SHOP QUICK SHOP Shark socks
shorts Boys' long-sleeve jersey Boys' glow-in-the-dark Boys’ long-sleeve slub T- 5’;"":::;’:101905ggegemway"'hnpfc”m“"“esa"dacc‘

pocket T-shirt (/boys- skateboard tricks shirt (/boys- ¢ price
clothing/knits_tees_polos/s olidsdRRAXMR 23889/¢839845p)  clothing/knits_tees_polos/solidsIBEOY78-%9980/co100.jsp)
valued at $19.50 clothing/knits_tees_polos/story hadke deas$RBBO VR~G3287/G 3287 jsp)

(https://factory.jerew.com/boy
s-clothing/shorts .jsp)

valued at $29.50 your price $9.50

pants
(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s-clothing/pants.jsp)

your price $9.50
your price $14.50
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(https://factor
s-
clothing/swim_rashguards.jsp)

thompson suits There are no reviews for this product. Be the first to comment. WRITE A REVIEW

(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s-clothing/suiting.jsp)

boxers
{https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s-clothing/sleep.jsp)

SHOES & ACCESSORIES

shoes & socks
(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s-clothing/shoes_socks.jsp)

ties & accessories
(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s-clothing/accessories.jsp)

S#0PS & GUIDES

non-boring basics under $25

(hitps://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s_shops/everyday_styles_for
_boys_sm.jsp)

dress-up shop
{https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s_shops/dress_up_shop.jsp)

getaway shop
(https://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s_shops/thegetawayshopforbo
ys.jsp)

online exclusives
(hitps://factory.jcrew.com/boy
s_shops/online_exclusives. jsp

)

YOUR ORDERS LET US HELP YOU OUR STORES POPULAR SEARCHES SIGN UP FOR

ORDER STATUS CONTACT US STORE LOCATOR CHAMBRAY SHIRTS FACTORY EMAILS

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELF SRIFARTOTATISREW. IO M/ HHELFY E OMFIVITD RIS J CFENM TUMSHYE AR/ETRIR EC B BWATOR/MERIENS CLoTH HAMBRAYELIDTS 1c0)

SHIPPING & HANDLING OUR SIZE CHARTS CASUAL DRESSES your email J0IN.US

{(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW,COM/MBORIEMIZPING_HANDLING.JSPOUR BRANDS (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOMENS: STEALS AND STYLE IDEAS,

RETURNS & EXCHANGES (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/MRIFHNG O UT_JCRE WFAGIIRHIBE|DRES SES/CASUALDRESSES WSRED T0 YOUR INBOX WEEKLY.

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/REROMGE FURSIS,_BECHBNGES. JSBITTPS //WWW. JCREW.COMINDEHQIBPS

INTERNATIONAL ORDERS (HTTPS://IFACTORY.JCREW.COM/BROBODIBFICFOOTER) (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOMENS-

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/BBREAREE RNATIONAL_ORDERS MABEWELL CLOTHING/SHORTS/soLiD.usp) LET'S HANG
(HTTPS://[FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELF € AREERSMIFBWE PIQCOSI/INDEX JSP?

THE J.CREW CREDIT THE J.CREW GIFT CARD SRCCODE=FCFOOTER) (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/M

CARD (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW. COM/HEIFH W MEFOOVRDTUSP) CLOTHING/TEES_POLOS_FLEECE/EUIES: W.FACEBOOK.COM/JCREWFAC™

(HTTPS://FACTORY, JCREQABDMAEEP /MERCANTILE . JSP)

Get $25 for every $500 you spend** J.CREW FACTORY (HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOME
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREQL OOMNG/SWEATERS/CARDIGANS .JSP)
WORK DRESSES

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/WOMENS-
CLOTHING/DRESSES/WEAR_TO_WORKDRESSES.JSP)
MEN'S SUITS

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/MENS-
CLOTHING/SUITING/SUITING .JSP)

/IPLUS.GOOGLE.COM/U/0/B/104690

(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/CREDIT_CARD.JSP)
APPLY TODAY & GET 15% OFF*
(HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/CREDIT_CARD.JSP)
MANAGE YOUR CARD

(HTTPS://ONLINEACCESS .MYCREDITCARD.CC/JCREW)

] A\l (HTTPS://FACTORY. JCREW.COM/INDEX.JSP} CONTACT US ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/CONTACT_US.JSP ) |
TERMS OF USE ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/TERMS_OF_USE.JSP ) | PRIVACY POLICY ( HTTPS://FACTORY. JCREW.COM/HELP/PRIVACY_POLICY.JSP ) |
CA TRANSPARENCY ACT ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/FLATPAGES/SOCIAL_RES_APRIL4.JSP ) | SITE MAP ( HTTPS://FACTORY.JCREW.COM/HELP/SITEMAP.JSP |

© 2017 J.CREW

SHIP TO: UNITED STATES | CHANGE
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Exhibit B
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Exhibit C
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Shane T. Prince

Subject: FW: Here's your J.Crew Factory eReceipt...

On Friday, November 25, 2016 11:57 AM, J.Crew Factory <factory@email.jcrew.com> wrote:

Gloucester Premium Outlets
100 Premium Outlet Dr, #830
Blackwood, NJ 08012
856-208-4537

Trans: 17165 Date: 11/25/16 11:49 AM
Store: 185 Register: 1
Sales Associate:

0 (House)

Cashier: Patricia
Customer: Caron Coladonato

Item Qty Price Amount
F9528:b 1s gitd paleontologist grap, KL9109, 3
099104497628 1 29.50 11.80
Extra 60% Discount (17.70)
F7607:B ls stripe ringer colorblock, KL8677, 3
099104464003 1 36.50 14.60
Extra 60% Discount (21.90)
F9526:b 1s gitd dino with car graph, KL9108, 3
099104497583 1 32.50 13,00
Extra 60% Discount (19.50)
F5086:LS PONTE DRESS, RD6483, XS
099104432879 1 98.00 39.20
Extra 60% Discount (58.80)
Subtotal 78.60
Sales Tax 0.00

Total 78.60
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Visa 78.60
************5858
Auth #: 09578D
Transaction Type: Sale
Entry Method: Chip Read
Auth Time: 11:49 AM
MID : 04165001
APPROVED
RRN : 633000019137
AID : a0000000031010
TVR : 0080008000
IAD : 06010a03a02002
TSI : £800
ARC : 00
APPLICATION : VISA CREDIT

Change 0.00

Sales Tax Analysis

Agency Rate% Taxable Tax
NEW JERSEY (State) 0% 39.40 0.00
NEW JERSEY (State) 0% 39.20 0.00

hhhhdhdhdhhhhhhdhdhhhhhhhhtrhdhrdhhdhdhhhrhs

You have saved $117.90
********************************************

J.Crew Factory accepts returns of
unworn, unwashed, undamaged or
defective merchandise for full refund
or exchange within 30 days of original
purchase. Original receipt must
accompany merchandise purchased from
a store by cash or check.Requests to
exchange merchandise received as a
gift must be accompanied by a gift
receipt.See store location or
www.jcrew.com for full return policy.

Read our privacy policy at
http://factory.jcrew.com/privacy.

Thank you for shopping at J.Crew.
Find more styles and deals at jcrewfactory.com

SOLD ITEM COUNT = 4
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AV O A

T1131C611311YF94APFEX

Customer Copy

HOW ABOUT

SOME EXTRA PERKS?

SUBSCRIBE TO FACTORY FIRST AND GET EMAIL EXCLUSIVE
FLASH SALES., EARLY ACCESS TO NEW ARRIVALS
AND SO MUCH MORE. RIGHT IN YOUR INBOX.

SIGN ME UP >




